## USGS OFR 85-441 Copy 1.

GEOLOGICAL APPLICATION OF WELL LOGS: A
SELECTED BIBLIOGRAPHY OF WELL LOGGING LITERATURE PUBLISHED THROUGH JUNE 30, 1985

Stephen E. Prensky 1985

U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY WRD, LIDRARY 505 MARQUETTE NW, RM 720 ALBUQUERQUE, N.M. 87102 USGS OFR 85-441 C.1

## UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

U.S. CZOLOGICAL SURVEY
WRD, LIZZARY
SOS MAZQUETTE NW, RM 720
ALBUQUERQUE, N.M. 87102

Geological Application of Well Logs

A Selected Bibliography of Well Logging Literature
Published Through June 30, 1985

bу

Stephen E. Prensky<sup>1</sup>

Open-File Report 85-441

This report is preliminary and has not been reviewed for conformity with U.S. Geological Survey editorial standards and stratigraphic nomenclature

<sup>1</sup> Box 25046, MS 971, Denver, CO, 80225

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

TOPIC			
Table of Contentsi			
Introductioniii			
1. Fundamentals of Well Logging and Well Log interpretation			
I. General Sources			
II. Crossplots			
III. Special Situations and Conditions Affecting Tool			
Response			
IV. Cased Hole Logging			
V. Acoustic Logging8			
VI. Nuclear Logging11			
VII. Shaly Sands			
VIII. Permeability from Logs			
IX. Reprint Volumes14			
X. Bibliographies			
XI. Log Response Charts16			
2. Geological Applications: General			
3. Determinations of Facies and Depositional Environment21			
4. Facies Analysis and Case Studies23			
5. Identification of Depositional Environments by SP Pattern.24			
6. Dipmeter Applications			
7. Automated Lithofacies Analysis and Computer Applications28			
8. Natural Gamma-ray Spectrometry31			
9. Organic Carbon and Source Rock Determination33			
10. Tight (Low-Permeability) Gas Sands			
11. Abnormal Pressure Detection			
12. Oil and Gas Shales40			
13. Heavy Oil and Tar Sands42			
14. Coal and Coalbed Methane44			
15. Fracture Detection47			
16. Gas Hydrates51			
17. Evaporites53			
18. Borehole Gravimeter55			

	TOPIC	PAGE
19.	Mineral Evaluation Including Uranium	57
20.	Ground Water Applications	61
21.	Igneous and Metamorphic Rocks	.62
22.	Geothermal and Geopressure	64

# GEOLOGICAL APPLICATION OF WELL LOGS: A SELECTED BIBLIOGRAPHY Stephen E. Prensky

This bibliography was prepared to provide a <u>basic</u> and <u>Introductory</u> resource for geologists who may be unfamiliar with well logging procedures, analysis, interpretation and application. Consequently, this bibliography is neither an exhaustive nor a comprehensive listing of well logging publications and only papers published in English have been included. This report emphasizes work published since 1975, with particular stress on texts and review articles which summarize earlier work. For those who may need or be interested in a more advanced discussion of particular topics, the lists of references in many of the papers cited here should offer a starting point.

1. FUNDAMENTALS OF WELL LOGGING AND WELL LOG INTERPRETATION

#### I. GENERAL

- Asquith, G.B., 1985, Handbook of log evaluation techniques for carbonate reservoirs: Tulsa, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, Methods in Exploration No. 5, 47 p.
- Asquith, G.B. and Gibson, C.R., 1982, Basic well log analysis for geologists: Tulsa, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, Methods in Exploration Series, 216 p.
- Bateman, R.M., 1984, Log quality control: Boston, IHRDC Press, 398 p.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1984, Cased-hole log analysis and reservoir performance monitoring: Boston, IHRDC Press, 380 p.
- Brock, J., 1984, Analyzing your logs, volume 2 (advanced open hole log interpretation): Petro-media, Inc., 186 p.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1984, Analyzing your logs, volume 1 (fundamentals of open hole log interpretation): Petro-Media, Inc., 270 p.
- Canadian Well Logging Society (CWLS):

  Journal
  Well Logging Symposium Transactions biannual
- Chapman, R.E., 1983, Petroleum geology: New York, Elsevier, Chapter 6, p. 107-137.
- Conaway, J.G., 1983, Digital filtering of geophysical logs in A.A. Fitch, ed., Developments in geophyscial methods--5: London, Applied Science Publishers, p. 65-105.
- Dewan, J.T., 1983, Essentials of modern open-hole log interpretation: Tulsa, PennWell Books, 361 p.
- de Witte, L., 1972, Formation evaluation, <u>In</u> G.V. Chilingar, R.W. Mannon, H.R. Rieke, III, eds., Oil and gas production from carbonate rocks: New York, Elsevier, Chapter 4, 143-215.
- Dresser Atlas, 1984, Well logging and interpretation techniques, the home study course: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 9333, variously paginated.

- \_\_\_\_\_, 1984, Wireline services catalog: Houston, Dresser Atlas Industries, publication 9102, 62 p. A brief discussion with illustrations of the various logging devices and processing services currently available
- Ellis, D. and Boucau, J., 1983, The future development of logging techniques: Oil and Enterprise, n. 2, September, p. 60-66.
- Fertl, W.H., 1983, Advances in well loggging and well interpretation, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the 11th world petroleum congress, v. 3: New York, John Wiley, p. 341-354. Later published in condensed form in 1984, Oil and Gas Journal, v. 82(16), April 16, p. 85-91.
- Finklea, E.E., 1981, Advanced logging techniques, <u>in</u> Workshop proceedings: world oil and natural gas supplies, June 1979: Electric Power Research Institute, WS-79-182, Paper 3-11, 23 p.
- Gilreath, J.A., 1977, Dipmeter, <u>in</u> L.W. LeRoy, D.O. LeRoy and J.W. Raese, eds., Subsurface geology, 4th ed.: Golden, CO., Colorado School of Mines, part 3, chapter 22, p. 389-396.
- Gomez-Rivero, O., 1982, Physical basis of well logging, <u>in</u> K.C. Jain and R.J.P. deFigueiredo, eds., Concepts and techniques in oil and gas exploration: Tulsa, Society of Exploration Geophysicists, Chapter 6, p. 161-198.
- Hallenburg, J.K., 1984, Geophysical logging for mineral and engineering applications: Tulsa, PennWell Books, 254 p.
- Hartley, K.B., 1979, Evaluation of wireline down-log information and effects of increased log speeds on data quality:
  Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 54th annual meeting (Las Vegas) preprint SPE-8363. Later published in 1980,
  Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 32(7), p. 1151-1160.
  Also published in 1981, Oil and Gas Journal, v. 79(8 and 9), February 23, p. 66-76, and March 2, p. 99-100.
- Hearst, J.R. and Nelson, P.H., 1985, Well logging for physical properties: New York, McGraw-Hill, 576 p.
- Helander, D.P., 1983, Fundamentals of formation evaluation: Tulsa, Oil and Gas Consultants International, 332 p.
- Hilchie, D.W., 1984, Reservoir description using well logs: Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 36(7), p. 1067-1073. A discussion and reply published in 1984, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 36(12), p. 2195-2196.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1982, Advanced well log interpretation: Golden, CO., D.W. Hilchie, Inc., variously paginated.

- \_\_\_\_\_, 1979, Old (pre-1958) electical log interpretation: Golden, CO., D.W. Hilchie Inc., 161 p.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1978, Applied openhole log interpretation: Golden, CO., D.W. Hilchie, Inc., variously paginated.
- D.O. LeRoy and J.W. Raese, eds., Subsurface geology, 4th ed.: Golden, CO., Colorado School of Mines, part 3, chapter 15, p. 342-346.
- Jain, K.C., 1982, Well logs in exploration, <u>in</u> K.C. Jain and R.J.P. deFigueiredo, eds., Concepts and techniques in oil and gas exploration: Tulsa, Society of Exploration Geophysicists, Chapter 7, p. 199-226.
- Kelley, D.R., 1969, A summary of major geophysical logging methods: Pennsylvania Geological Surey Bulletin M61, 82 p.
- Kerzner, M.G. and Frost, E., Jr., 1982, Blocking--A new technique for well log interpretation: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 57th annual meeting (New Orleans) preprint SPE-11093, 14 p. Later published in 1984, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 36(2), p. 267-275.
- Looyestijn, W.J., 1982, Deconvolution of petrophysical logs: Applications and limitations, <u>in</u> 23rd annual logging symposium transactions, paper W: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 20 p. A discussion of improving the vertical resolution of different logging tools.
- Maciula, E.A. and Cochrane, J.E., 1967, Quantitative use of calibration data to correct miscalibrated well logs: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 42nd annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-1940. Later published in 1968, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 20(7), p. 663-670.
- Merkel, R.H., 1979, Well log formation evaluation: Tulsa, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, Continuing Education Course Note Series 14, 82 p.
- Moran, J.H. and Chemali, R., 1985, Focused resistivity logs <u>In</u>
  A.A. Fitch, ed., Developments in geophysical exploration
  methods--6: London, Elsevier Applied Science Publishers, p.
  225-260.
- Pickett, G.R., 1977, Resistivity, radioactivity and acoustic logs, in L.W. LeRoy, D.O. LeRoy and J.W. Raese, eds., Subsurface geology, 4th ed.: Golden, CO., Colorado School of Mines, part 3, chapter 13, p. 304-336.

- Pirson, S.J., 1963, Handbook of well log analysis for oil and gas formation evaluation: Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, Prentice-Hall, 325 p.
- Ransom, R.C., 1984, (ed.), Glossary of terms and expressions used in well logging, 2nd ed.: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 116 p.
- Reiter, M., Mansure, A.J. and Peterson, B.K., 1980, Precision continuous temperature logging and comparison with other types of logs: Geophysics, v. 45(12), p. 1857-1868.
- Schlumberger, 1985, Log interpretation charts: New York, Schlumberger Ltd., 112 p.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1983, Openhole services catalog: New York, Schlumberger Ltd., 72 p. A brief discussion with illustrations of the various logging devices and processing services currently available.
- \_\_\_\_, 1974, Log interpretation volume 2--Applications: New York, Schlumberger Ltd., 116 p.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1972, Log interpretation volume 1--Principles: New York, Schlumberger Ltd., 112 p.
- Segesman, F.F., 1980, Well-logging method: Geophysics, v. 45(11), p. 1667-1684. A concise history of well logging, see references.
- Sengel, E.W., 1984, Well logging handbook: Oklahoma City, Institute for Energy Development (IED), 168 p.
- Serra, O., 1984, Fundamentals of well-log interpretation volume 1: the acquisition of data: New York, Elsevier, Developments in Petroleum Science 15A, 423 p.
- Shen, L.C., Savre, W.C., Price, J.M. and Athavale, K., 1985, Dielectric properties of reservoir rocks at ultra-high frequencies: Geophysics, v. 50(4), p. 692-704. An important paper on the interpretation of dielectric (EPT) logs.
- Silva, P. and Bassiouni, Z., 1981, A new approach to the determination of formation water resistivity from the SP log, <u>in</u> 22nd annual logging symposium transactions, paper G: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 15 p.
- Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Houston Chapter, 1979, The art of ancient log analysis: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 131 p. + reprints. Interpretation of old electric logs.

- Society of Professional Well Log Analysts (SPWLA):
  The Log Analyst bimonthly journal
  Annual Logging Symposium Transactions
  European Formation Evaluation Symposium Transactions
  Reprint volumes
- Threadgold, P., 1971, Some problems and uncertainties in log interpretation, <u>in</u> 13th annual logging symposium transactions, paper, W: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 19 p. Later reprinted in 1972, The Log Analyst, v. 12(2), March-April, p. 3-11.
- Timur, A., 1982, Open hole well logging, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the international petroleum conference, Beijing: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, SPE-10037, p. 639-674. Later published in condensed form 1982, Advances in well logging: Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 34(6), p. 1181-1185.
- Well Logging, 1971: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, Reprint Series 1, 410 p. Contains papers on basic tool principles and application.
- Wyman, R.E., 1981, Well logging, <u>in</u> S.P. Parker, ed., Encyclopedia of energy, 2nd ed.: New York, McGraw-Hill, p. 778-785.

#### II. CROSSPLOT APPLICATIONS

- Ferti, W.H., 1978, Open-hole crossplots--A powerful technique in well log analysis: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, European offshore petroleum conference preprint SPE-8115. Later published in 1981, Journal of Petroleum Technology, 33(3), p. 535-549. See references.
- Maple, L., 1985, A crossplot approach to electromagnetic propagation tool (EPT) interpretation, <u>in</u> 26th annual logging symposium transactions, paper N: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 18 p.
- Mathews, D.M. and Bassiouni, Z., 1984, Resistivity-spontaneous potential crossplot for enhanced interpretation of well logs: The Log Analyst, v. 25(4), July-August, p. 14-19.
- O'Brian, W.J., Brown, S.L. and Sanyal, S.K., 1982, Crossplot technique for the analysis of the carbon/oxygen log, <u>in</u> Proceedings California regional meeting: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, SPE-10740, p. 243-266.

- III. SPECIAL SITUATIONS AND CONDITIONS AFFECTING TOOL RESPONSE
- Clavier, C., Heim, A. and Scala, C., 1976, Influence of pyrite on resistivity and other logging measurements, <u>in</u> 17th annual logging symposium transactions, paper HH: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 33 p.
- Cooley, B.B., 1974, The delta tension curve for better log quality, <u>in</u> 15th annual logging symposium transactions, paper F: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 9 p. Later reprinted in 1974, The Log Analyst, v. 15(4), July-August, p. 8-13.
- Cox, J.W. and Raymer, L.L., 1976, The effect of potassium-salt muds on gamma ray, and spontaneous potential measurements, <u>In</u> 17th annual logging symposium transactions, paper I: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, , 20 p.
- Crues, J.V., Jr., 1982, Recognizing large SP anomalies in the Cretaceous carbonates along the Balcones systems and how to interpret them: Bulletin of the South Texas Geological Society, v. 23(4), December, p. 16-27.
- Ferti, W.H., 1979, Interpretive well logging concepts assist south Texas formation evaluation problems: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 29, p. 64-73.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1978, How subsurface temperature affects formation evaluation: Oil and Gas Journal, v. 76(30), July 24, p. 54-62.
- Fertl, W.H., King, E.E. and Kumar., R., 1978, Important SP and gamma ray log anomalies explained: Oil and Gas Journal, v. 76(34), August 21, p. 70-75.
- Fertl, W.H. and Hammack, G.W., 1976, Solid particle penetration into porous reservoir rocks and its effect on well log analysis, <u>in</u> 17th annual logging symposium transactions, paper F: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 10 p.
- Hammack, G.W. and Fertl, W.H., 1974, Anomalies observed on well logs, <u>In</u> 15th annual logging symposium transactions, paper V: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 21 p. Also published in 1974, World Oil, v. 179(7), p. 69-73.
- Jordan, J.R. and Campbell, F.L., 1984, Well logging 1--Rock properties, borehole environment, mud and temperature logging: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, Monograph Series 9, 167 p.

- Kowalski, J.J. and Asekun, S.O., 1979, It may not be shale, <u>in</u> 20th annual logging symposium transactions, paper P: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 15 p.
- McGlothlin, R.E. and Krause, H., 1980, Water base drilling fluids, <u>In</u> Proceedings of research on environmental fate and effects of drilling fluids and cuttings symposium, volume 1: U.S. Department of Energy, Report DOE/CONF-800172, p. 30-37. A concise description of the composition and uses of commonly used water-based drilling muds.
- McMordie, W.C. Jr., 1980, Oil base drilling fluids, <u>in</u>
  Proceedings of research on environmental fate and effects
  of drilling fluids and cuttings symposium, volume I: U.S.
  Department of Energy, Report DOE/CONF-800172, p. 38-42. A
  concise description of the composition and uses of
  oil-based drilling muds.
- Moore, C.V. and Kaufman, R.L., 1981, Your unsuspected problems: Fluid resistivity and water analysis, <u>in</u> 22nd annual logging symposium transactions, paper C: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 15 p.
- Suau, J. and Spurlin, J., 1982, Interpretation of micaceous sandstones in the North Sea, <u>in</u> 23rd annual logging symposium transactions, paper G: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 32 p.
- Williams, H. and Dunlap, H.E., 1984, Short term variations in drilling fluid parameters; their measurement and implications: The Log Analyst, v. 25(5), September-October, p. 3.

#### IV. CASED HOLE LOGGING

- Connolly, E.T., 1970, Interpretation and recognition of calibration and recording abnormalities on production logs: Canadian Well Logging Society Journal, v. 3(1), December, p. 89-122.
- Dresser Atlas, 1984, Wireline services catalog: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 9102, 43 p. A brief discussion with illustrations of the various logging devices and processing services currently available.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1983, Neutron Lifetime Log Interpretation: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 3319, 73 p.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1981, Interpretive methods for production well logs: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 9441, 113 p.

- Elkins, L.F., 1978, Evaluation <u>in</u> Determination of residual oil saturation: Oklahoma City, Interstate Oil Compact Commission, chapter 8, p. 177-261.
- Ferti, W.H., 1982, Well logging and its applications in cased holes, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the international petroleum conference, Beijing: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, SPE-10034, p. 541-561. Later published in 1984, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 36(2), p. 249-266.
- Fertl, W.H. and Wichmann, P.A., 1977, Exploration for and evaluation of hydrocarbon resources in cased boreholes, in Fifth European logging symposium transactions, paper 25: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 17 p.
- Jones, R.L., 1982, Bootstrapping your way into TDT analysis: The Log Analyst, v. 23(4), July-August, p. 3-13.
- McKinley, R.M., 1982, Production logging, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the international petroleum exhibition and technical symposium, Bejing: Society of Petroleum Engineers, SPE-10035, p. 563-594.
- Schlumberger, 1983, Production services catalog: New York,
  Schlumberger Ltd., 60 p. A brief discussion with
  illustrations of the various logging devices and processing
  services currently available.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1975, Cased hole applications: New York, Schlumberger Ltd., 123 p.
- Wyman, R.E., 1978, Logging methods <u>in</u> Determination of residual oil saturation: Oklahoma City, Interstate Oil Compact Commission, chapter 5, p. 89-116.

#### V. ACOUSTIC LOGGING

- Acoustic Logging, 1978: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts Reprint Volume. Contains papers on tool development, operation and application.
- Baker, L.J., 1984, The effect of the invaded zone on full wavetrain acoustic logging: Geophysics, v. 49(6), p. 796-809. An important discussion on the depth of investigation of acoustic logging tools.
- Blakeman, E.R., 1982, A case study of the effect of shale alteration on sonic transit times, <u>in</u> 23rd annual logging symposium transactions, paper II: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 14 p. Disucses the effects of invasion on the sonic log.

- Botter, B.J., 1982, Circumferential acoustic waves in boreholes for the delineation of vertical fractures, <u>in</u> 23rd annual logging symposium transactions, paper S: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 21 p.
- Castagna, J.P. and Gaiser, J.E., 1984, Digital processing improves sonic log reliability: World Oil, v. 198(5), April, p. 71-74.
- Chemali, R, Gianzero, S. and Su, S.M., 1984, The depth of investigation of compressional wave logging for the standard and the long spacing sonde, <u>In</u> 9th international formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper 13: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 10 p.
- Hartley, K.B., 1981, Factors affecting sandstone acoustic compressional velocities and an examination of empirical correlations between velocities and porosities, <u>In</u> 22nd annual logging symposium transactions, paper PP: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 20 p.
- Hoard, R.E., 1983, Sonic waveform logging: A new way to obtain subsurface geologic information, <u>in</u> 24th annual logging symposium transactions, paper XX: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 16 p. Later published in 1985, Oil and Gas Journal, v.;83(26), July 1, p. 70-74.
- Hornby, B.E. and Chang, S.K., 1985, A case study of shale and sandstone alteration using a digital sonic tool <u>in</u> 26th annual well logging symposium transactions, paper H: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 10 p.
- Husten, P., 1979, Analysis of sonic wave trains, <u>in</u> 6th European formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper D: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 15 p.
- Koerperich, E.A., 1979, Shear wave velocities determined from long- and short-spaced borehole acoustic devices: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 54th annual meeting (Las Vegas) preprint SPE-8237. Later published in 1980, Society of Petroleum Engineers Journal, v. 20(5), p. 317-326.
- Kowalski, J.J., 1975, Formation strength parameters from well logs, in 16th annual logging symposium transactions, paper N, 19 p. Reprinted in 1978, Acoustic Logging: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Reprint Volume, paper Z, 19 p.

- McCann, D.M. and McCann, C., 1976, The application of borehole acoustic logging techniques in engineering geology, <u>in</u> 4th European formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper N: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 22 p. Later published in 1977, The Log Analyst, v. 18(3), May-June, p. 30-37.
- Minear, J.W., 1982, Clay models and acoustic velocities: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 57th annual meeting (New Orleans) preprint SPE-11031, 11 p.
- Nations, J.F., 1974, Lithology and porosity from acoustic shear and compressional wave transit time relationships, <u>in</u> 15th annual logging symposium transactions, paper Q: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 16 p. Later published in 1975, The Log Analyst, v. 16(6), November-December, p. 3-8. Reprinted in 1978, Acoustic logging: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Reprint Volume, paper Y, 16 p.
- Overton, A., 1975, Borehole seismic methods, <u>in</u> A.V. Dyck, ed., Borehole geophysics applied to metallic mineral prospecting—A review: Geological Survey of Canada Paper 75-31, p. 3-12.
- Rambow, F.H.K., 1984, The borehole televiewer: Some field examples, <u>in</u> 25th annual logging symposium transactions, paper C: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 21 p.
- Raymer, L.L., Hunt, E.R. and Gardner, J.S., 1980, An improved sonic trasit time-to-porosity transform, <u>in</u> 21st annual logging symposium transactions, paper P: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 12 p.
- Smith, R.F., McCoy, R.L., Ausburn, B.E. and Pottorf, B.R., 1978, Determining acoustic velocity of subsurface formations from well log data: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 53rd annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-7435. Later published in 1979, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 31(11), p. 1453-1461.
- Taylor, T.J., 1983, Interpretation and application of borehole televiewer surveys, <u>in</u> 24th annual logging symposium transactions, paper QQ: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 19 p.
- Thomas, D.H., 1977, Seismic applications of sonic logs, <u>in</u> 5th European logging symposium transactions, paper 7: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 23 p. Later published in 1978, The Log Analyst, v. 19(1), January-February, p. 23-32.

- Tixier, M.P., Loveless, G.W. and Anderson, R.A., 1973,
  Estimation of formation strength from the Mechanical
  Properties Log: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers,
  48th annual meeting (Las Vegas) preprint SPE-4532, 14 p.
  Later published in 1975, Journal of Petroleum Technology,
  v. 27(3), p. 283-293. Reprinted in 1978, Acoustic Logging:
  Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Reprint
  Volume, paper X, 11p.
- Tosaya, C. and Nur, A., 1982, Effects of diagenesis and clays on compressional velocities in rocks: Geophysical Research Letters, v. 9(1), p.
- Willis, M.E. and Toksoz, M.N., 1983, Automatic P and S velocity determination from full waveform digital acoustic logs: Geophysics, v. 48(12), p. 1631-1644.
- Zemanek, J., Caldwell, R.L., Glenn, E.E., Jr., Holcomb, S.W., Norton, L.J. And Straus, A.J.D., 1968, The Borehole Televiewer--A new logging concept for fracture location and other types of borehole inspection: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 43rd annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-2402. Later published in 1969, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 21(6), p. 762-774.

#### VI. NUCLEAR LOGGING

- Caldwell, R.L., Mills, W.R., Jr., Orr, W.L. and Allen, L.S., 1977, Nuclear techniques in oil and gas exploration and production, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the symposium on nuclear technology in exploration, extraction and processing mineral resources, 1977: Vienna, International Atomic Energy Agency, p. 3-41.
- Dresser-Atlas, 1983, Neutron Lifetime Log: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 3319, 100 p. Interpretation and application manual.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1981, Carbon/Oxygen log: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 9417, variously paginated. Reprints of papers on tool operation, interpretation and application.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1981, Spectralog: Houston, Dresser Industries, pubication 3334, variously paginated. Reprint volume containing papers on tool applications.
- Gamma Ray, Neutron and Density Logging, 1978: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, variously paginated. Reprint volume containing significant papers in these areas.

- Hartley, K.B., 1979, Evaluation of wireline down-log information and effects of increased log speeds on data quality:
  Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 54th annual meeting (Las Vegas) preprint SPE-8363. Later published in 1980,
  Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 32(7), p. 1151-1160.
  Also published in 1981, Oil and Gas Journal, v. 79(8 and 9), February 23, p. 66-76, and March 2, p. 99-100.
- Hilchie, D.W., 1977 Nuclear well logging for petroleum, <u>in</u> J.G. Morse, ed., Nuclear methods in mineral exploration and production: New York, Elsevier, Developments in Economic Geology 7, p. 201-213.
- Jones, R.L., 1982, Bootstrapping your way into TDT analysis: The Log Analyst, v. 23(4), July-August, p. 3-13.
- Killeen, P.G., 1982, Gamma-ray logging and interpretation, <u>in</u>
  A.A. Fitch, ed., Developments in geophysical exploration
  methods 3: London, Applied Science Publishers, p. 95-150.
- O'Brian, W.J., Sanyal, S.K. and Brown, S.L., 1983, Comprehensive analysis of the carbon/oxygen log: U.S. Department of Energy, Report DOE/ET/12056-28, January 1983, 69 p.
- Schlumberger, 1982, Essentials of natural gamma ray spectrometry interpretation: Singapore, Schlumberger Ltd., 69 p.
- Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 1979, Pulsed neutron logging: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 448 p. Reprint volume containing papers on tool operation and application.

#### VII. SHALY SANDS

- Almon, W.R., 1979, A Geological appreciation of shaly sands, <u>in</u> 20th annual logging symposium transactions, paper WW:
  Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 14 p.
- Fertl, W.H., 1980, Well log analysis concepts in clastic and argillaceous U.S. Gulf Coast sediments: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies v. 30, p. 81-89.
- Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 1982, Shaly Sand:
  Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Reprint
  volume, variously paginated. Reprints of significant papers
  + bibliography. Excellent source for studying the shaly
  sand problem.

- Thomas, E.C. and Steiber, S.J., 1975, The distribution of shale in sandstones and its effect upon porosity, <u>In</u> 16th annual logging symposium transaction, paper T: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 15 p.
- Vinegar, H.J. and Waxman, M.H., 1984, Induced polarization of shaly sands: Geophysics, v. 49(8), p. 1267-1287. An investigation of this method for direct in-situ log determination of CEC for use in shaly sand evaluation.
- Vinegar, H.J., Waxman, M.H., Best, M.H. and Reddy, K., 1985, Induced polarization logging--Tool development, borehole departure curves and field test results, <u>in</u> 26th annual logging symposium transactions, paper AAA: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 62 p.
- Worthington, P.F, 1985, The evolution of shaly-sand concepts in reservoir evaluation: The Log Analyst, v. 26(1), p. 23-40. A concise discussion of the development of models for evaluation of shaly sands. See references.
- Worthington, P.F. and Collar, F.A., 1982, The relevance of induced polarization to quantitative formation evaluation, <u>in</u> 23rd annual logging symposium transactions, paper U: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 42 p.

#### VIII. PERMEABILITY FROM LOGS

- Alian, J.R., 1979, Prediction of permeability from logs by multiple regression, <u>in</u> 6th European formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper M: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 13 p.
- Brown, A.A., 1977, Permeability from well logs Shaybah Field, Saudi Arabia, <u>in</u> 18th annual logging symposium transactions, paper Q: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 22 p.
- Brown, R.J.S. and Neuman, C.H., 1982, The nuclear magnetism log--A guide for field use: The Log Analyst, v. 23(5), September-October, p. 4-9.
- Burck, L.J.S. and Forsyth, D., 1984, Permeability prediction in shaly sands, <u>in</u> 9th international formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper 19: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 18 p.
- Coates, G.R. and Dumanoir, J.L., 1973, A new approach to improved log-derived permeability, <u>in</u> 14th annual logging symposium transactions, paper R: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Later published in 1974, The Log Analyst, v. 15(1), January-February, p. 17-31.

- Ershaghi, I., Dougherty, E.L., Herzberg, D. and Ucok, H., 1981, Permeability determination in liquid dominated geothermal reservoirs using the Dual Induction Laterolog, in I. Ershaghi, E.E. Dougherty, L.L. Handy, eds., Formation evaluation in liquid dominated geothermal reservoirs: U.S. Department of Energy, Report DOE/ET/28384-T1, p. 41-59.
- Loren, J.D., 1972, Permeability estimates from NML measurements: Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 24(8), p. 923-928.
- Neuman, C.H. and Brown, R.J.S., 1981, Applications of nuclear magnetism logging to formation evaluation: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 56th annual meeting (San Antonio) preprint SPE-10108, 10 p. Later published in 1982, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 34(12), p. 2853-2862.
- Ogbe, D. and Bassiouni, Z., 1978, Estimation of acquifer permeabilities from electric well logs: The Log Analyst, v. 19(5), September-October, p. 21-27.
- Pape, H., Riepe, L and Schopper, J.R., 1984, Calculating permeability from electrical logging data, <u>in</u> 9th international formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper 22: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 11 p.
- Timur, A., 1968, An investigation of permeability, porosity, and residual water saturation relationships for sandstone reservoirs <u>in</u> 9th annual well logging symposium transactions, paper J: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts,? p. Later published in 1968, The Log Analyst, v. 9(4), July-August, p. ?.

#### IX. REPRINT VOLUMES

- Abnormal formation pressures, 1974: Tulsa, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, Reprint Series 11, 205 p.
- Acoustic logging, 1978: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, variously paginated.
- Carbon/oxygen Log, 1981: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 9417m variously paginated. Interpretation manual + reprints of significant papers.
- Gamma ray, neutron and density logging, 1978: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Houston, variously paginated.
- Pulsed neutron logging, 1979: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 448 p.

- Shaly sand, 1982: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, variously paginated.
- Spectralog, 1981: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 3334, variously paginated.
- Well logging, 1971: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, Reprint Series No. 1, 410 p.

#### X. BIBLIOGRAPHIES

- Connolly, E.T., 1973, Comprehensive bibliography of well logging literature 1942-1972: Canadian Well Logging Society Journal, v. 6(1), p. 51-87.
- Dyck, A.V., 1975, ed., Borehole geophysics applied to metallic mineral prospecting—A review: Geological Survey of Canada, Paper 75-31, 67 p. Eight separate review papers each with a bibliography.
- Hilchie, D.W., 1979, Cumulative index, 1960-1978: The Log Analyst, SPWLA symposium papers, SPWLA European symposium papers, CWLS symposium papers, and CWLS Journal: The Log Analyst, v. 20(1), January-February, p. 6-39.
- IRT Corporation, 1976, Future research in borehole assaying technology Volume 2--Bibliography of borehole assaying techniques, 1965-75: U.S. Bureau of Mines, Open-File Report 119(2)-76 (Contract J0255018, Final Report, March 18, 1976), 325 p.
- Laramie Energy Research Center, 1981, A Bibliography of Publications Dealing With Tar Sands: U.S. Department of Commerce, National Technical Information Service, Report DOE/LETC/RI-81-2 (DE81-026146), 294 p.
- Nuhfer, E.B. and Nurmi, R.D., 1976, Bibliography of references for recognition of depositional environment from wireline log data: West Virginia Geological and Economic Survey, Mineral Briefs Series, 15 p.
- Robbins, S.L., 1980, Bibliography with abridged abstracts of subsurface gravimetry (especially borehole) and corresponding in-situ rock density determinations: U.S. Geological Survey, Open-File Report 80-710, 47 p.
- Scott, J.H., 1974, Well-logging techniques for mineral deposit evaluation—A review: U.S. Bureau of Mines, Information Circular 8627, 45 p.

#### XI. LOGGING RESPONSE CHARTS

- Logging device response chart, 1979: Calgary, Petrocraft Products. Also available through Petrocraft Products Inc., Denver. Illustrates the response of different logging devices to varying lithologies of different geologic ages and contains a summary of how each tool responds to different lithologic parameters.
- Klein, G. deV., 1984, Vertical sequences and log shapes of major sandstone reservoir systems: Boston, IHRDC Press.
- Well log response chart, 1983: Houston, PennWell Publishers.

#### 2. GEOLOGICAL APPLICATIONS: GENERAL

- Alger, R.P., 1980, Geological use of wireline logs, <u>in</u> G.D. Hobson, ed., Developments in petroleum geology 2: London, Applied Science Publishers Ltd., p. 207-272.
- Beck, A.E., 1976, The use of thermal resistivity logs in stratigraphic correlation: Geophysics v. 41(2), p. 300-309. Reprinted in 1977, The Log Analyst, v. 17(1), January-February, p. 17-22.
- Bigelow, E.L., 1985, Making more intelligent use of log derived dip information, Part I: Suggested guidelines: The Log Analyst, v. 26(1), January-February, p. 41-51. Part II: Wellsite data gathering considerations: The Log Analyst, v. 26(2), March-April, p. 25-41. Part III: Computer processing considerations: The Log Analyst, v. 26(3), May-June, p. 18-31.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1982, Application of dip-related measurements to a complex-carbonate-clastic depositional environment: The Log Analyst, v. 23(2), p. 9-30.
- Canadian Well Logging Society (CWLS):

  Journal
  Well Logging Symposium Transactions biannual
- Cant, D.J., 1983, Subsurface sedimentology: Geoscience Canada, v. 10(3), p. 115-121.
- Chapman, D.S., Keho, T.H., Bauer, M.S. and Picard, M.D., 1984, Heat flow in the Unita Basin determined from bottom hole temperature (BHT) data: Geophysics, v. 49(4), p. 453-466.
- Dyck, J.H., 1973, Some applications of borehole logging to Quaternary research—A study in southern Saskatchewan: Geoexploration, v. 11(4), p. 233-247.
- Fertl, W.H., 1977, Shale density studies and their application, <u>in</u> G.D. Hobson, ed., Developments in petroleum geology 1: London, Applied Science Publishers, p. 293-327.
- Fons, L., 1969, Geological applications of well logs, <u>in</u> 10th annual logging symposium transactions, paper AA: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 44 p.
- Goldberg, D., Moos, D. amd Anderson, R.N., 1985, Attenuation changes due to diagenesis in marine sediments <u>In</u> 26th annual well logging symposium transactions, paper KK: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 18 p.
- Holt, O.R., 1983, Relating diplogs to practical geology: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 1603, 69 p.

- Interstate Oil Compact Commission, 1978, Determination of residual oil saturation: Oklahoma City, Interstate Oil Compact Commission, 302 p.
- Kowalski, J.J., 1975, Formation strength parameters from well logs, <u>In</u> 16th annual logging symposium transactions, paper N: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 19 p. Reprinted in 1978, Acoustic logging: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Reprint Volume, paper Z, 19 p.
- Magara, K., 1979, Formation water salinity and its exploration application, <u>in</u> 7th formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper S: Calgary, Canadian Well Logging Society, 8 p.
- Mann, C.J., 1979, Obstacles to quantitative lithostratigraphic correlation, <u>In</u> D. Gill and D.F. Merriam, eds., Geomathematical and petrophysical studies in sedimentology: New York, Pergamon Press, p. 149-165.
- Maxant, J., 1980, Variation of density with rock type, depth, and formation in Western Canada basin from density logs: Geophysics, v. 45(6), p. 1061-1076.
- McCann, D.M. and McCann, C., 1976, The application of borehole acoustic logging techniques in engineering geology, <u>in</u> 4th european formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper N: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 22 p. Later published in 1977, The Log Analyst, v. 18(3), May-June, p. 30-37.
- McConnell, C.L., 1985, Salinity and temperature anomalies over structural oil fields, Carter County, Oklahoma: AAPG Bulletin, v. 69(5), p. 781-787.
- \_\_\_\_, 1985, Time dependence of the quivalent water resistivity in fresh water wells: The Log Analyst, v. 26(3), May-June, p. 12-17.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1983, Spontaneous Potential corrections for ground-water salinity calculations; Carter County, Oklahoma, U.S.A.:
  Journal of Hydrology, v. 65, p. 363-372.
- Nyberg, O., Lindberg, P.A., Lien, K. and Smistad, 1978, Mineral composition, an aid in classical log analysis used in Jurassic sandstones of the northern North Sea, <u>in</u> 19th annual logging symposium transactions, paper M: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 35 p.
- Overton, H.L., 1978, Appraisal of water movement from subsurface data: The Log Analyst, v. 19(5), September-October, p. 3-20.

- Pirson, S.J., 1983, Geologic well log analysis, 3rd ed.: Houston, Gulf Publishing Company, 475 p.
- Reyment, R., 1982, Correlating between electrical borehole logs in paleocology, <u>in</u> J.M. Cubitt and R.A. Reyment, eds., Quantitative stratigraphic correlation: New York, John Wiley, p. 233-240.
- Sallee, J.E. and Wood, B.R., 1982, Use of microresistivity from the dipmeter to improve formation evaluation in thin sands, northeast Kalimantan, Indonesia, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the offshore South East Asia conference: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers SPE-10462, 24 p. Later published in 1984, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 36(9), p. 1535-1544.
- Sethi, D.K., 1981, Well log applications in rock mechanics, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the 1981 SPE/DOE symposium on low permeability gas reservoirs: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, SPE/DOE-9833, p. 45-53.
- Schlumberger, International Well Evaluation Conferences. Held irregularly and in different countries. Contain lavishly illustrated discussions of: the regional geology; operation of new and existing logging devices and their application to specific reservoir evaluation problems in the host county. Previous conferences include: 1973, Indonesia; 1974, Nigeria and North Sea; 1975, Arabia; 1976, Iran; 1979, Algeria; 1980, Venezuela; 1981, Arab Emirates/Qatar and Southeast Asia; 1982, Continental Europe; 1983, West Africa and India; 1984, Mexico; 1985, China.
- Society of Professional Well Log Analysts (SPWLA):
  The Log Analyst bimonthly journal
  Annual Logging Symposium Transactions
  European Formation Evaluation Symposium Transactions
  Reprint volumes
- Smith, R.F., McCoy, R.L., Ausburn, B.E. and Pottorf, B.R., 1978, Determining acoustic velocity of subsurface formations from well log data: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 53rd annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-7435. Later published in 1979, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 31(11), p. 1453-1461.
- Thomas, D.H., 1977, Seismic applications of sonic logs, <u>in</u> 5th European logging symposium transactions, paper 7: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 23 p. Later published in 1978, The Log Analyst, v. 19(1), January-February, p. 23-32.

Tixier, M.P., Loveless, G.W. and Anderson, R.A., 1973,
Estimation of formation strength from the Mechanical
Properties Log: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers,
48th annual meeting (Las Vegas) preprint SPE-4532, 14 p.
Later published in 1975, Journal of Petroleum Technology,
v. 27(12), p. 283-293. Reprinted in 1978, Acoustic Logging:
Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Reprint
Volume, paper X, 11p.

#### 3. DETERMINATION OF FACIES AND DEPOSITIONAL ENVIRONMENT

- Almon, W.R. and Schultz, A.L., 1979, Electric log detection od diagenetically altered reservoirs and diagenetic traps: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 29, p. 1-10.
- Asquith, G.B., 1979, Subsurface carbonate depositional models—A concise review: Tulsa, Petroleum Publishing Co., Chapter 4, p. 103-116.
- Galloway, W.E. and Hobday, D.K., 1983, Terrigenous clastic depositional systems: New York, Springer-Verlag, 423 p.
- Gilreath, J.A., 1977, Dipmeter, <u>in</u> L.W. LeRoy, D.O. LeRoy and J.W. Raese, eds., Subsurface geology, 4th ed.: Golden, CO., Colorado School of Mines, part 3, chapter 22, p. 389.
- Goetz, J.F., Prins, W.J. and Logar, J.F., 1977, Reservoir delineation by wireline techniques: The Log Analyst, v. 18(5), September-October, p. 12-40.
- Lalouel, P., 1979, Log interpretation in deltaic sequences, <u>in</u> Proceedings 8th annual convention: Indonesian Petroleum Association, p. 247-290.
- Lawrence, T.D., Ball, S., Harris, M., 1984, Continuous carbon/oxygen and neutron lifetime log proposed interpretation for organic and/or shaly depositional environments, <u>in</u> 25th annual logging symposium transactions, paper QQ: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 19 p.
- Nurmi, R.D., 1984, Geological evaluation of high resolution dipmeter data, <u>in</u> 25th annual logging symposium transactions, paper YY: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 23 p.
- Payre, X. and Serra O., 1979, Turbidites recognized through dipmeter, <u>in</u> 6th European logging symposium transactions, paper K: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 26 p.
- Priisholm, S. and Michelsen, O., 1979, The use of porosity logs in lithology determination, lithostratigraphy and basin analysis, <u>In</u> D.Gill and D.F. Merriam, eds., Geomathematical and petrophysical studies in sedimentology: Oxford, Pergamon Press, Computers in Geology Series, p. 71-79.
- Schlumberger, 1981, Dipmeter interpretation volume 1--Fundamentals: New York, Schlumberger Ltd., 61 p.

- Selley, R.C., 1979, Dipmeter and log motifs in North Sea submarine-fan sands: AAPG Bulletin, v. 63(6), p. 905-917.
- York, Cornell University Press, 287 p.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1975, Subsurface diagnosis of deltaic deposits with reference to the northern North Sea, <u>in</u> Jurassic of the northern North Sea symposium, paper JNNSS/13: Norwegian Petroleum Society, 22 p.
- \_\_\_\_\_\_, 1974, Environmental analysis of subsurface sediments, in 3rd European formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper J: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 15 p. Later published in 1976, Subsurface environmental analysis of North Sea sediments: AAPG Bulletin, v. 60(2), p. 184-195. Also published in 1976, The Log Analyst, v. 17(1), January-February, p. 3-11.
- Slack, H.A. and Otte, C., 1960, Electric log interpretation in exploration for stratigraphic traps in shaly sands: AAPG Bulletin, v. 44(12), p. 1874-1894.
- Watney, W.L., 1979, Gammaray-neutron [sic] cross-plots as an aid in sedimentological analysis, <u>in</u> D. Gill and D.F. Merriam, eds., Geomathematical and petrophysical studies in sedimentology: Oxford, Pergamon Press, Computer in Geology Series, p. 81-100.
- Weber, K.J., 1971, Sedimentological aspects of oil fields in the Niger Delta: Geologie en Mijnbouw, v. 50(3), p. 559-576.

#### 4. FACIES ANALYSIS AND CASE STUDIES

- Adams, S.C. and Kullerud, G., 1984, Depositional patterns of Pennsylvanian sediments in Sullivan County, west-central Indiana, USA: International Journal of Coal Geology, v. 3, p. 349-373.
- Bashem, W.H.M. and Dorfman, M.H., 1983, Facies characterization of carbonates by use of well logs, Sligo Formation (Lower Cretaceous), South Texas, <u>in</u> 24th annual logging symposium transactions, paper SS: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 17 p.
- Carrigy, M.A., 1971, Deltaic sedimentation in Athabasca tar sands: AAPG Bulletin, v. 55(8), p. 1155-1169.
- Harris, P.M., Dodman, C.A. and Bliefnick, D.M., 1984, Permian (Guadalupian) reservioir facies, McElroy Field, west Texas, <u>in</u> Harris, P.M., ed., Carbonate sands--A core workshop: Tulsa, Society of Economic Paleontologists and Mineralogists, Core Workshop No. 5, p. 136-174.
- Jageler, A.H. and Matuszak, D.R., 1972, Use of well logs and dipmeters in stratigraphic-trap exploration, <u>in</u> R.E. King, ed., Stratigraphic oil and gas fields--Classification, exploration methods and case histories: Tulsa, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, Memoir 16, p. 107-135.
- Mitchell-Tapping, H.J., 1983, Petrophysical evaluation of the Smackover comoldic porosity of East Texas and Southern Arkansas: The Log Analyst, v. 24(4), July-August, p. 3-13.
- Olsen, R.S., 1982, Depositional environment of Jurassic Smackover Sandstones, Thomasville Field, Rankin County Mississippi: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 32, p. 59-66.
- Witherbee, L.J., Godfrey, R.D. and Dimelow, T.E., 1983,
  Predicting turbidite-contourite reservoir intervals in
  tight gas sands--A case study from the Mancos B Sandstone,
  In Proceedings of the 1983 SPE/DOE symposium on low
  permeability gas reservoirs, SPE/DOE-11609: Dallas, Society
  of Petroleum Engineers, p. 87-94.

#### 5. USE OF THE SP CURVE FOR IDENTIFYING SEDIMENTARY ENVIRONMENTS

- Allan, D.R., 1975, Identification of sediments--Their depositional environment and degree of compaction from well logs, <u>in</u> G.V. Chilingarian and K.H. Wolf, eds., Compaction of coarse-grained sediments, I: New York, Elsevier, Developments in Sedimentology 18A, p. 349-401.
- Coleman, J.M. and Prior, D.B., 1982, Deltaic environments of deposition, <u>in</u> P.A. Scholle and D. Spearing, eds., Sandstone depositional environments: Tulsa, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, Memoir 31, p. 139-178.
- Coppinger, W.W. and Schlutz, A.L., 1983, Using the self-potential curve to define depositional trends in Lower Wilcox sands, McMullen County, Texas: Bulletin of the South Texas Geological Society, v. 23(6), p. 16-28.
- Dresser Atlas, 1984, Well logging and interpretation techniques, the home study course: Houston, Dresser Industries, publications 9333, variously paginated. Includes a discussion on the use of SP for evaluating depositional environments.
- Fisher, W.L., 1969, Facies characterization of Gulf Coast basin delta systems with some Holocene analogues: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 19, p. 239-261.
- Flores, R.M., Toth, J.C. and Moore, T.A., 1982, Use of geophysical logs in recognizing depositional environments in the Tongue River Member of the Fort Union Formation, Powder River Area, Wyoming and Montana: U.S. Geological Survey, Open-File Report 82-756, 22 p.
- Fons, L., 1969, Geological applications of well logs, <u>in</u> 10th annual logging symposium transactions, paper AA: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 44 p.
- Galloway, W.E., 1968, Depositional systems of the Lower Wilcox Group, north-central Gulf Coast Basin: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 18, p. 275-289.
- Jageler, A.H. and Matuszak, D.R., 1972, Use of well logs and dipmeters in stratigraphic-trap exploration, <u>in</u> R.E. King, ed., Stratigraphic oil and gas field--Classification, exploration methods and case histories: Tulsa, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, Memoir 16, p. 107-135.
- Klein, G. deV., 1984, Vertical sequences and log shapes of major sandstone reservoir systems: Boston, IHRDC Press. A chart with references.

- \_\_\_\_\_, 1980, Sandstone depositional models for exploration for fossil fuels: Minneapolis, Cepco Division, Burgess Publishing Co., 149 p.
- Krueger, W.C., 1968, Depositional environments of sandstones as interpreted from electrical measurements—An introduction: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 18, p. 226-241.
- Lock, B.E., 1982, Towards a better understanding of Gulf Coast Miocene deep water sediments: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 32, p. 283-288.
- Norwood, E.M., 1974, Lithofacies mapping--A descriptive tool for ancient delta systems of the Louisiana outer continental shelf: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 24, p. 175-188.
- Nuhfer, E.B. and Nurmi, R.D., 1976, Bibliography of references for recognition of depositional environment from wireline log data: West Virginia Geological and Economic Survey, Mineral Briefs Series, 15 p.
- Pirson, S.J., 1983, Geologic well log analysis, 3rd ed.: Houston, Gulf Publishing Co., 475 p.
- Ruoff, W.A., 1976, A technique for interpreting depositional environments of sandstone from the SP log using a computer: The Log Analyst, v. 17(4), July-August, p. 3-10.
- Saitta, B.S. and Visher, G.S., 1968, Subsurface study of the southern portion of the Bluejacket delta, <u>in</u> A guidebook to the geology of the Bluejacket-Bartlesville Sandstone, Oklahoma: Oklahoma Geological Society, p. 52-65.
- Snedden, J.W., 1984, Validity of the use of the spontaneous potential curve shape in the interpretation of sandstone depositional environments: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 34. p. 255-263.
- Tizzard, P.G. and Lerbekmo, J.F., 1975, Depositional history of the Viking Formation, Suffield area, Alberta, Canada: Bulletin of Canadian Petroleum Geology, v. 23(4), p. 715-752.
- Visher, G.S., 1965, Use of vertical profile in environmental reconstruction: AAPG Bulletin, v. 49(1), p. 41-61. Paper generally cited as the basis of environmental interpretation of the SP curve.

#### 6. DIPMETER APPLICATIONS

- Babcock, E.A., 1978, Measurement of surbsurface fractures from dipmeter logs: AAPG Bulletin, v. 62(7), p. 1111-1126.
- Baker, J.D., 1984, DIPMETER ADVISOR: an expert log analysis system at Schlumberger <u>in</u> P.H. Winston and K.A. Prendergast, eds., The Al business; the commercial uses of artificial intelligence: Cambridge, Massachussetts, The MIT Press, p. 51-65.
- Beaudoin, B., Pinoteau, B. and Delhomme, J.P., 1983, Geological analysis of logs and dipmeter data for well-to-well correlation, <u>in</u> 24th annual logging symposium transactions, paper BBB: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 18 p. Deep-sea fan example.
- Bigelow, E.L., 1985, Making more intelligent use of log derived dip information, Part I: Suggested guidelines: The Log Analyst, v. 26(1), January-February, p. 41-51. Part II: Wellsite data gathering considerations: The Log Analyst, v. 26(2), March-April, p. 25-41. Part III: Computer processing considerations: The Log Analyst, v. 26(3), May-June, p. 18-31.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1982, Application of dip-related measurements to a complex carbonate-clastic depositional environment: The Log Analyst, v. 23(2), March-April, p. 9-30.
- Gilreath, J.A., 1977, Dipmeter, <u>in</u> L.W. LeRoy, D.O. LeRoy and J.W. Raese, eds., Subsurface geology, 4th ed.: Golden, CO., Colorado School of Mines, part 3, chapter 22, p. 389-396.
- Holt, O.R., 1983, Relating Diplogs to Practical Geology: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 1603, 69 p.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1972, Structural geologic considerations in diplog interpretation, <u>in</u> 13th annual logging symposium transactions, paper Q: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 30 p. Later published in 1973, The Log Analyst, v. 14(2), March-April, p. 3-9.
- Jageler, A.H. and Matuszak, D.R., 1972, Use of well logs and dipmeters in stratigraphic-trap exploration, <u>in</u> R.E. King, ed., Stratigraphic oil and gas fields--Classification, exploration methods and case histories: Tulsa, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, Memoir 16, p. 107-135.
- Kerzner, M.G., 1983, Formation dip determination--An artificial intelligence approach: The Log Analyst, V. 24(5), September-October, P. 10-22.

- Nurmi, R.D., 1984, Geological evaluation of high resolution dipmeter data, <u>in</u> 25th annual logging symposium transactions, paper YY: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 23 p.
- Payre, X. and Serra O., 1979, Turbidites recognized through dipmeter, <u>in</u> 6th European logging symposium transactions, paper K: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 26 p.
- Sallee, J.E. and Wood, B.R., 1982, Use of microresistivity from the dipmeter to improve formation evaluation in thin sands, northeast Kalimantan, Indonesia, In Proceedings of the offshore South East Asia conference, SPE-10462: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 24 p. Later published in 1984, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 36(9), p. 1535-1544.
- Schlumberger, 1981, Dipmeter interpretation volume 1--fundamentals: New York, Schlumberger Ltd., 61 p.
- Selley, R.C., 1979, Dipmeter and log motifs in North Sea submarine-fan sands: AAPG Bulletin, v. 63(6), p. 905-917.
- Shields, C., 1974, The dipmeter used to recognize and correlate depositional environment, in 3rd European formation evalution symposium transactions, paper, H: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 15 p.
- Smith, R.G. and Young, R.L., 1984, The design of the dipmeter advisor system <u>in</u> Proceedings of the ACM annual conference, October, 1984: New York, Association for Computing Machinery, p. 15-23.
- Stuart-Bruges, W.P., 1984, A dipmeter for use in oil based muds, <u>In</u> 9th international formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper 32: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 8 p.

#### 7. AUTOMATED LITHOFACIES ANALYSIS AND COMPUTER APPLICATIONS

- Baker, J.D., 1984, DIPMETER ADVISOR: an expert log analysis system at Schlumberger <u>in</u> P.H. Winston and K.A. Prendergast, eds., The Al business; the commercial uses of artificial intelligence: Cambridge, Massachussetts, The MIT Press, p. 51-65.
- Berteig, V., Helgeland, J., Mohn, E., Langeland, T., van der Wel, D., 1985, Geofacies determination by logging data, <u>in</u> 26th annual logging symposium transactions, paper TT: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 25 p.
- Bornemann E. and Doveton, J.H., 1983, Lithofacies mapping of Viola Limestone in south central Kansas based on wireline logs: AAPG Bulletin, v. 67(4), p. 609-623.
- Delfiner, P.C., Peyret, O. and Serra, O., 1984, Automatic determination of lithology from well logs: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 59th annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-13290, 8 p.
- Delfiner, P., Delhomme, J.P. and Pelissier-Cobescure, J., 1983, Application of geostatistical analysis to the the evaluation of petroleum reservoirs with well logs, <u>in</u> 24th annual logging symposium transactions, paper WW: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 26 p.
- Doveton, J.H., 1983, Automated lithofacies analysis from well logs, <u>in</u> 12th annual geochautauqua short course notes, November 8, 1983: Lawrence, Kansas Geological Survey/University of Kansas, 188 p.
- Doveton, J.H. and Bornemann, E., 1983 Log normalization by trend surface analysis: The Log Analyst, v. 22(4), July-August, p. 3-8.
- Doveton, J.H. and Cable, H.W., 1979, Fast matrix methods for the lithological interpretation of geophysical logs, <u>In</u> D. Gill and D.F. Merriam, eds., Geomathematical and petrophysical studies in sedimentology: Oxford, Pergamon Press, Computers in Geology Series, p. 101-116.
- Doveton, J.H. Ke-An, Z. and Davis, J.C., 1984, Three-dimensional trend mapping using gamma-ray well logs: Simpson Group, south-central Kansas: AAPG Bulletin, v. 68(6), p. 690-703.
- Hempkins, W.B., 1977, Multivariate statistical approaches in formation evaluation, <u>in</u> 18th annual logging symposium transactions, paper DD: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 23 p.

- Lanning, E.N. and Johnson, D.M., 1983, Automated identification of rock boundaries—An application of the Walsh transform to geophysical well-log analysis: Geophysics, v. 48(2), p. 197.
- Magara, K., 1979, Identification of sandstone body types by computer method: Journal of the International Association for Mathematical Geology, v. 11(3), p. 269-283.
- Pirie, G., 1984, Computer-generated interpretations of stratigraphy and depositional environments from a logging/core study--Cotton Valley Group, East Texas, in W.P.S. Ventress, D. Bebout, B.F. Perkings and C.H. Moore, eds., The Jurassic of the Gulf rim: Gulf Coast Section of the Society of Economic Paleontologists and Mineralogists p. 323-331.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1982, Geology and log study of tight gas sandstones--Cotton Valley Group: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 32, p. 77-88.
- Rider, M.H. and Laurier, D., 1979, Sedimentology using a computer treatment of well logs, <u>in</u> 6th European formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper J: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 12 p.
- Robinson, J.E., 1982, Computer Applications in Petroleum Geology: New York, Hutchinson Publishing Company, Chapter 12, Computer analysis of well logs, p. 143-151. Discussion of unusual graphic displays of log data.
- Ruoff, W.A., 1976, A technique for interpreting depositional environments of sandstone from the SP log using a computer: The Log Analyst, v. 17(4), July-August, p. 3-10.
- Serra, O. and Abbott, H.T., 1980, The contribution of logging data to sedimentary sedimentology and stratigraphy: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 55th annual meeting (Dallas) preprint SPE-9270, 19 p. Later published in 1982, Society of Petroleum Engineers Journal, v. 22(1), p. 117-131.
- Serra, O., Delfiner, P., Levert, J.C., 1985, Lithology determination from well-logs--Case studies, <u>in</u> 26th annual logging symposium transactions, paper WW: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 19 p.
- Serra, O. and Sulpice, L., 1975, Sedimentological analysis of sand-shale series from well logs, <u>in</u> 16th annual logging symposium transactions, paper W: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 23 p.

- Shaw, B.R. and Cubitt, J.M., 1979, Stratigraphic correlation of well logs: An automated approach, <u>in</u> D. Gill and D.F. Merriam, eds., Geomathematical and petrophysical studies in sedimentology: New York, Pergamon Press, p. 127-148.
- Smith, R.G. and Young, R.L., 1984, The design of the dipmeter advisor system <u>in</u> Proceedings of the ACM annual conference, October, 1984: New York, Association for Computing Machinery, p. 15-23.
- Szendro, D., 1983, A statistical method for lithologic interpretation from well logs: The Log Analyst, v. 24(3), May-June, p. 16-23.
- Wolff, M. and Pelissier-Combescure, J., 1982,
  FACIOLOG--Automatic electrofacies determination <u>in</u> 23rd
  annual logging symposium transactions, paper FF: Houston,
  Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 23 p.

### 8. NATURAL GAMMA RAY SPECTROMETRY (Clay Analysis, Organic Content, Fracture Identification)

- Donovan, W.S. and Hilchie, D.W., 1979, Natural gamma ray emission in the Muddy J Formation in eastern Wyoming, in 7th formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper B: Calgary, Canadian Well Logging Society, 11 p. Later published in 1981, The Log Analyst, v. 22(2), February-March, p. 17-22.
- Fertl, W.H., 1983, Gamma ray spectral logging: A new evaluation frontier [a seven-part series]: World Oil, 196(4), March, p. 79-91; 196(5), April, p. 87-98; 196(6), May, p. 147-155; 196(7), June, p. 189-204; 197(2), August 1, p. 57-63; 197(4), October, p. 99-112; 197(5), November, p. 85-88. See references.
- formation evaluation, in 6th European formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper Q: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter. Later published in 1979, The Log Analyst, v. 20(5), September-October, p. 3-37. Reprinted in 1981, Spectralog: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 3334.
- Fertl, W.H., Chilingarian, G.V. and Yen, T.F., 1982, Use of natural gamma ray spectral logging in evaluation of clay minerals: Energy Sources, v. 6(4), p. 335-360.
- Fertl, W.H. and Frost E., Jr., 1979, Evaluation of shaly clastic reservoir rocks: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 54th annual meeting (Las Vegas) preprint SPE-8450. Later published in 1980, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 31(9), p. 1641-1646. Reprinted in 1981, Spectralog: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 3334.
- Ferti, W.H. and Rieke, H.H., III, 1979, Gamma ray spectral evaluation techniques identify fractured shale reservoirs and source-rock characteristics: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 54th annual meeting (Las Vegas) preprint SPE-8454. Later published in 1980, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 32(11), p. 2053-2062.
- Gilchrist, W.A., Jr., Quirein, J.A., Boutemy, Y.L., Tabanou, J.R., 1982, Application of gamma ray spectroscopy to formation evaluation, <u>in</u> 23rd annual logging symposium transactions, paper B: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 28 p.
- Kowalski, J.J. and Asekun, S.O., 1979, It may not be shale, <u>in</u> 20th annual logging symposium transactions, paper P: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 15 p.

- Ruhovets, N. and Ferti, W.H., 1982, Volumes, types and distribution of clay minerals in reservoir rocks based on well logs, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the SPE/DOE unconventional gas recovery symposium, SPE/DOE-10796: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 67-82.
- Schlumberger, 1982, Fundamentals of natural gamma ray spectrometry and essentials of NGS interpretation: Singapore, Schlumberger Ltd., 69 p.
- Zelt, F.B., 1985, Natural gamma-ray spectrometry, lithofacies and depositional environments of selected upper cretaceous marine mudrocks, western United States, including Tropic Shale and Tununk Member of Mancos Shale: Princeton University, unpublished PhD. dissertation, 354 p. Numerous papers in preparation.

# 9. ORGANIC CARBON AND SOURCE ROCK DETERMINATION

- Autric, A. and Dumensil, P., 1985, Resistivity, radioactivity and sonic transit time logs to evaluate the organic content of low permability rocks: The Log Analyst, v. 26(3), May-June, p. 36-45.
- Dellenbach, J., Espitalie, J. and Lebreton, F., 1983, Source rock logging, <u>in</u> 8th European logging symposium transactions, paper D: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 19 p.
- Fertl, W.H., 1983, Gamma ray spectral logging, part III--Measuring source rock potential: World Oil, v. 196(6), p. 147-155.
- Gautier, D.L, Starkey, H.C., Takahashi, K.I., 1983, Clays, cations and geophysical log response of gas-producing and nonproducing zones in the Gammon Shale (Cretaceous), southwestern North Dakota: Clays and Clay Minerals, v. 31(2), p. 122-128.
- Meissner, F.F., 1978, Petroleum geology of the Bakken Formation Williston basin, North Dakota and Montana, <u>In</u> Williston basin symposium: Montana Geological Society, p. 207-227. Later reprinted in 1984, <u>In</u> G.Demaison and R.J. Murris, eds., Petroleum geochemistry and basin evaluation: Tulsa, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, Memoir 35, p. 159-179.
- Mendelson, J.D. and Toksoz, M.N., 1985, Source rock characterization using multivariate analysis of log data, <u>in</u> 26th annual logging symposium transactions, paper UU: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 21 p.
- Meyer, B.L. and Nederlof, M.H., 1984, Identification of source rocks on wireline logs by density/resistivity and sonic transit time/resistivity crossplots: AAPG Bulletin v. 68(2), p. 121-129.
- Schmoker, J.W., 1983, Organic carbon in Bakken Formation, U.S. Portion of Williston Basin: AAPG Bulletin, 67(12), p. 2165-2174.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1981, Determination of organic-matter content of Appalachian Devonian shales from gamma-ray logs: AAPG Bulletin, 65(7), p. 1285-1298.
- Devonian shales from formation-density logs: AAPG Bulletin, 63(9), p. 1504-1509.

Smagala, T.M., Brown, C.A. and Nydegger, 1984, Log-derived indicator of thermal maturity, <u>in</u> J. Woodward, F.F. Meissner, J.L. Clayton, eds., Hydrocarbon source rocks of the greater rocky mountain region: Denver, Rocky Mountain Association of Geologists, p. 355-363.

# 10. TIGHT (LOW-PERMEABILITY) GAS SANDS

- Autric, A. and Dumensil, P., 1985, Resistivity, radioactivity and sonic transit time logs to evaluate the organic content of low permability rocks: The Log Analyst, v. 26(3), May-June, p. 36-45.
- Dawson-Grove, G.E., 1979, Log analysis in tight gas sands--A reconnaissance study, <u>in</u> 7th formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper H: Calgary, Canadian Well Logging Society, 14 p.
- Boardman, C.R., Hammack, G.W., Fertl, W.H. and Atkinson, C.H., 1972, Evaluation of low-permeability gas-bearing formations in Rio Blanco County, Colorado: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 47th annual meeting (San Antonio) preprint SPE-4097. Later published in 1973, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 25(10), p. 1125-1129.
- Frank, R.W., 1978, Formation evaluation with logs in the Ark-La-Tex Cotton Valley: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 28, Part 1, p. 131-141.
- Henry, K.C., 1979, Gas detection in the extremely shally Bowdoin Formation of northern Montana, <u>in</u> 20th annual logging symposium transactions, paper T: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 45 p.
- Hunt, E.R., Raymond, D.H., Haskett, C.E. and Pirie, R.G., 1981, Application of new well logs and geology to fracturing and producibility in tight gas sands, Cotton Valley Group, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the 1981 SPE/DOE symposium on low permeability gas reservoirs, SPE/DOE-9832: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 35.
- Jackson, J.A., Brown, J.A. and Crawford, T.R., 1981, Remote characterization of tight gas formations with a new NMR logging tool, <u>In</u> Proceedings of the 1981 SPE/DOE symposium on low permeability gas reservoirs, SPE/DOE-9860: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 313-320.
- Jennings, J.B. and Carroll, H.B. Jr., eds., 1982, Proceedings of the western tight gas sands advanced logging workshop, March 17-18, 1981: U.S. Department of Energy, Bartlesville Energy Technology Center, Report CONF-8103113, April 1982, 253 p.
- Kukal, G.C., 1984, A systematic approach for the effective log analysis of tight gas sands, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the SPE/DOE/GRI unconventional gas recovery symposium, SPE/DOE/GRI-12851: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 209-220.

- \_\_\_\_\_, 1983, Log analysis in low-permeability gas sand sequence--Correcting for variable unflushed gas saturation, <u>in</u> 23rd annual logging symposium transactions, paper F: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 18 p.
- \_\_\_\_\_\_, 1981, Determination of fluid corrected porosity in tight gas sands and in formations exhibiting shallow invasion profiles, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the 1981 SPE symposium on low permeability gas reservoirs, SPE-9856: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 289-299.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1979, Formation evaluation and gas detection in shallow, low-permebility shaly sands of the Northern Great Plains province, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the 1979 SPE symposium on low permeability gas reservoirs, SPE-7920: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 85-98. Later published in 1981, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 33(10), p. 1976-1984.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1978, Log evaluation of compacted shaly sands of the Mesaverde Group, Unita Basin, Utah, <u>In</u> Proceedings of 4th annual DOE symposium on enhanced oil and gas recovery and improved drilling methods, volume 2, paper E-1: U.S. Department of Energy, 18 p.
- Kukal, G.C., Biddison, C.L., Hill, R.E., Monson, E.R. and Simons, K.E., 1983, Critical problems hindering accurate log interpretation of tight gas sand reservoirs, <u>In Proceedings of the 1983 SPE/DOE symposium on low permeabilty gas reservoirs, SPE/DOE-11620: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 181-190.</u>
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1983, Tight gas sands log interpretation--Problem study: Chicago, Gas Research Institute, final report GRI-82/0094, July 1982, 181 p.
- Kukal, G.C. and Simons, K.E., 1985, Log analysis techniques for quantifying the permeability of sub-millidarcy sandstone reservoirs, <u>In Proceedings of the 1985 SPE/DOE symposium on low permeability reservoirs</u>, SPE/DOE-13880: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 303-310.
- Murphy, W.F., III, 1984, Acoustic measures of partial gas saturation in tight sandstones: Journal of Geophysical Research, v. 89(B13), p. 11,549-11,559.
- Nur, A. and Raible, C., 1983, Sonic and electrical properties of partially saturated tight gas sands: U.S. Department of Energy, Report DOE/BC/10498-5, March 1983, 54 p.

- Nydegger, G.L., Rice, D.D., Brown, C.A., 1979, Development of shallow gas reserves in low-permeability reservoirs of Late Cretaceous age, Bowdoin Dome area, north-central Montana, In Proceedings of the 1979 SPE symposium on low permeability gas reservoirs, SPE-7945: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 315-323. Later published in 1980, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 32(12), p. 2111-2120.
- Osoba, J.S. and Raible, C.J., 1982, Study of Sonic, Neutron and Density Logging of Low Permeability Gas Sands: U.S. Department of Energy, Bartlesville Energy Technology Center, Report DOE/BC/00010-33, May 1982, 63 p.
- Osoba, J., Gist, R. and Carroll, H., 1981, Log evaluation techniques in Uinta basin found faulty: World Oil, v. 192(6), June, p. 235-244.
- Pirie, G., 1982, Geology and log study of tight gas sandstones--Cotton Valley Group: Transactions of the Gulf Coast Association of Geological Societies, v. 32, p. 77-88.
- Rosepiler, M.J., 1981, Calculation and significance of water saturations in low porosity shaly gas sands, <u>in</u> 23rd annual logging symposium transactions, paper C: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 21 p. Also published in condensed form 1981, Oil and Gas Journal, v. 79(28), July 13, p. 180-187.
- Wescott, W.A., 1983, Diagenesis of Cotton Valley Sandstone (Upper Jurassic), East Texas--Implications for tight gas formation pay recognition: AAPG Bulletin, v. 67(6), p. 1002-1013. A discussion and reply published in 1985, AAPG Bulletin v. 69(5), p. 813-816.

### 11. ABNORMAL PRESSURE DETECTION

- Campbell, R., 1974, Abnormal pressure detection using log data, <u>In</u> 3rd European formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper T: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 16 p.
- Eaton, B.A., 1972, The effect of overburden stress on geopressure prediction from well logs, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the abnormal pore pressure symposium: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers. Later published in 1972, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 24(8), p. 929-934.
- Ever, J.F. and Ezeanyim, R., 1983, Prediction of abnormal pressures in Wyoming sedimentary basins using well logs, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the Rocky Mountain regional meeting (Salt Lake City), SPE-11859: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 363-374.
- Fertl, W.H., 1977, Shale density studies and their application, <u>in</u> G.D., Hobson, ed., Developments in petroleum geology 1: London, Applied Science Publishers, p. 293-327.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1976, Abnormal formation pressures: New York, Elsevier, Chapter 5, Geophysical well-logging techniques detect and evaluate abnormal formation pressures, p. 177-274.
- Hamouz, M.A. and Mueller, S.L., 1984, Some new ideas for well log pore-pressure prediction: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 59th annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-13204, 11 p.
- Hottman, C.E. and Johnson, R.K., 1965, Estimation of formation pressures from log-derived shale properties: Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 17(6), p. 717-722, SPE-1110. Reprinted in 1971, Well logging: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, Reprint Series 1, p. 299-305. One of the first papers in use of logs for pressure detection-evaluation.
- Lane, R.A. and MacPherson, L.A., 1974, A review of geopressure evaluation from well logs--Louisiana Gulf Coast: Dalas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 49th annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-5033, 16 p. Later published in 1976, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 28(9), p. 963-971.
- McGregor, J.R., 1965, Quantitative determination of reservoir pressures from conductivity logs: AAPG Bulletin, v. 49(9), p. 1502-1511. Reprinted in 1974, Abnormal Subusrface Pressure: Tulsa, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, Reprint Series 11, p. 37-46. One of the first papers on pressure detection using well logs.

- Pickering, L.A. and Indelicato, G.J., 1985, Abnormal formation pressure—A review: The Mountain Geologist, v. 22(2), April, p. 78-89.
- Pritchett, W.C., 1978, Physical properties of shales and possible origins of high pressures: Dailas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 53rd annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-7506. Later published in 1980, Society of Petroleum Engineers Journal v. 20(5) p. 341-348.
- Rathbun, F.C. and Dickey, P., 1968, Abnormal pressures and conductivity anomaly, northern Green River basin, Wyoming: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 43rd annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-2205, 8 p. Later reprinted in 1969, The Log Analyst, v. 10(4), July-August, p. 3-8.
- Reynolds, E.B., Timko, D.J., Zanier, A.M., 1972, Potential hazards of acoustic-log shale pressure plots: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 47th annual meeting (San Antonio) preprint, SPE-4020. Later published in 1973, Journal of Petroleum Geology, v. 25(9), p. 1039-1044.
- Taneja, P.K. and Carroll, J.F., 1985, Abnormal pressure detection using a pulsed neutron log <u>in</u> 26th annual well logging symposium transactions, paper MM: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 10 p.
- Timko, D.J. and Fons, L.C, 1971, Definition, identification and measurement of normal and abnormal subsurface pressures, in Abnormal subsurface pressures, a study group report, 1969-1971: Houston Geological Society, p. 20-30.
- Wallace, W.E., 1965, Abnormal subsurface pressures measured from conductivity or resistivity logs, <u>in</u> 6th annual logging symposium, paper 1: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 13 p. Also published in 1965, The Log Analyst, v. 6(4), February-March, p. 26-38. and in 1965, Oil and Gas Journal, v. 63, July 5, p. 102-106. One of the first papers on use of logs for pressure detection.
- Wichmann, P.A., 1973, A review of the use of logs to determine abnormal pressures: Canadian Well Logging Society Journal, v. 6(1), December, p. 7-32. Later published in 1974, <u>in 15th annual logging symposium transactions</u>, paper C: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 16 p.

### 12. OIL AND GAS SHALES

- Aguilera, R., 1980, Naturally fractured reservoirs: Tulsa, Petroleum Publishing Company, Chapter 5, Fractured shales, p. 355-414.
- Bardsley, S.R. and Algermissen, S.T., 1963, Evaluating oil shale by log analysis: Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 15(1), p. 81-84. Later published in 1963, Colorado School of Mines Quarterly, v. 58(4), p. 175-184.
- Curtis, J.B. and Fingleton, W.G., 1979, A preliminary evaluation of various log analysis techniques for the eastern Devonian shales, <u>in</u> 20th annual logging symposium transactions, paper I: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 20 p.
- Flower, J.G., 1981, Use of sonic-shear-wave/resistivity overlay as a quick-look method for identifying potential pay zones in the Ohio (Devonian) Shale: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, Eastern regional meeting preprint SPE-10366. Later published in 1983, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 35(3), p. 638-642.
- Habiger, R. and Robinson, R.H., 1983, Using a multiple log approach to evaluate Green River oil shale in the Piceance Creek Basin, <u>in</u> J.H. Gary, ed., Proceedings of the 16th oil shale symposium: Golden Co., Colorado School of Mines, p. 45-67.
- Hashmy, K.H., Hefter, T. and Chicko, R., 1982, Quantitative log evaluation in the Devonian shales of the northeast United States, <u>In Proceedings of the 1982 SPE/DOE unconventional gas recovery symposium SPE/DOE-10795</u>: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 55-66.
- Lawrence, T.D., Ball, S., Harris, M., 1984, Continuous carbon/oxygen and neutron lifetime log proposed interpretation for organic and/or shaly depositional environments, <u>in</u> 25th annual logging symposium transactions, paper QQ: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 19 p.
- Smith, J.W., Thomas, H.E. and Trudell, L.G., 1968, Geologic factors affecting density logs in oil shale, <u>In</u> 9th annual logging symposium transactions, paper P: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 17 p. Reprinted in 1978, Gamma Ray, Neutron and Density Logging: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Reprint volume, paper CC, 17 p.

Tixier, M.P. and Curtis, M.R., 1967, Oil shale yield predicted from well logs, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the 7th world petroleum congress, volume 3: New York, Elsevier, p. 713-715.

### 13. HEAVY OIL AND TAR SANDS

- Brown, J.S., 1965, Formation evaluation in heavy oil sands:
  Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 4(4), p. 177. Later
  published in 1966, <u>in</u> 7th annual logging symposium
  transactions, paper B: Houston, Society of Professional
  Well Log Analysts, 14 p.
- Carrigy, M.A., 1971, Deltaic sedimentation in Athabasca tar sands: AAPG Bulletin, v. 55(8), p. 1155-1169.
- Chestnut, D.A. and Cox, D.O., 1978, Log analysis in a Rocky Mountain heavy oil reservoir, <u>In</u> 19th annual logging symposium transactions, paper F: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 15 p.
- Collins, H.N., 1974, Log-core correlations in the Athabasca oil sands: Dallas, Society Petroleum Engineers, 49th annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-5037, 17 p. Later published in 1976, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v.28(10), p. 1157-1168.
- Cossette, B.B., 1981, Well log analysis in heavy oil sands, <u>in</u> 8th formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper K: Calgary, Canadian Well Logging Society 18 p.
- Fertl, W.H., 1984, Recent advances in the evaluation of heavy oil reservoirs based on geophysical well-logging concepts, <u>in</u> R.F. Meyer, J.C. Wynn and J.C. Olson, eds., The future of heavy crude and tar sands (2nd International UNITAR conference proceedings, 1982): New York, Coal Age Mineral Information Service, McGraw-Hill Inc., p. 313-317.
- using geophysical well logging techniques in open and cased boreholes, <u>in</u> R.F. Meyer, C.T. Steele and J.C. Olson, eds., Heavy crude oils and tar sands (1st international UNITAR conference proceedings, 1979): New York, Mineral Information Service, McGraw-Hill, Inc., p. 283-294.
- Fertl, W.H. and Chilingarian, G.V., 1978, Formation evaluation of tar sands using geophysical well-logging techniques, <u>in</u> G.V. Chilingarian and T.F. Yen, eds., Bitumens, asphalts and tar sands: New York, Elsevier, Developments in Petroleum Science 7, Chapter 11, p. 259-276.
- Ferti, W.H. and Elliott, D.B., 1984, Well log assisted evaluation of heavy oil resources--A status report, <u>in</u>

  Proceedings of the AAPG research conference on exploration for heavy crude oil and bitumen, volume 1: Tulsa, American Association of Petroleum Geologists, 28 p.

- Fetzner, R.W., Henson, W.L. and Feigl, F.J., 1966, Athabasca oil sand evaluation using core and log analysis and geological data processing methods, <u>in</u> 7th annual logging symposium transactions, paper A: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 13 p.
- Freedman, R. and Studlick, J.R.J., 1981, Evaluation of a heavy oil prospect Bandera Tank area Maverick and Zavala Counties, Texas, <u>in</u> 22nd annual logging symposium transactions, paper Y: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 39 p. Later published in 1981, Oil and Gas Journal, v. 79,(48), November 30, p. 63-76.
- Laramie Energy Research Center, 1981, A bibliography of publications dealing with tar sands: U.S. Department of Commerce, National Technical Information Service, Report DOE/LETC/RI-81-2 (DE81-026146), 294 p.
- Mraz, T.J., Rajeshwar, K. and Dubow, J.B., 1982, Thermophysical characterization of oil sands, part 2, acoustic properties: Fuel, v. 61(3), p. 240-244.
- Roux, C., Fertl, W.H., Frost, E., Stedman, D., Elliott, D., 1981, Well logs evaluate and monitor heavy oil steam flood in Kern County, California, <u>in</u> 22nd annual logging symposium transactions, paper II: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 17 p.
- Sah, R.C., Chase, A.E. and Wells, L.E., 1974, Evaluation of the Alberta tar sands: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 49th annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-5034, 15 p.
- Vogel, A.W., Jr., 1982, Predicting possibility of oil production from tar sand deposits based on geologic, logging and chemical composition: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, Rocky Mountain regional meeting (Billings) preprint SPE-10884, 15 p.
- Woodhouse, R., 1976, Athabasca tar sand reservoir properties derived from cores and logs: Canadian Well Logging Society Journal, v. 9(1), p. 83. Also published in 1976, <u>in</u> 17th annual logging symposium transactions, paper T: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 13 p.

#### 14. COAL AND COALBED METHANE

- Agostini, A., 1977, Correlation of high resolution density log counts and ash content of coal: Australian Society of Exploration Geophysicists Bulletin, v. 8(2), p. 26-31.
- Asten, M.W., 1983, Borehole log analysis using an interactive computer: Australian Society of Exploration Geophysicists Bulletin, v. 14, p. 3-10. Discussion of computer-assisted estimation of lithological and geotechnical parameters.
- Bond, L.O., Alger, R.P. and Schmidt, A.W., 1971, Well log applications in coal mining and rock mechanics: Transactions of the Society of Mining Engineers AIME, v. 250, December, p. 355-362.
- Brom, R.W.C. and Driedonks, F., 1981, Applications of petrophysical logging in the evaluation of coal deposits, <u>in</u> 22nd annual logging symposium transactions, paper KK: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 29 p.
- Clayton, C.G., 1977, Applications of nuclear techniques in the coal industry, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the symposium on nuclear techniques in exploration, extraction and processing of mineral resources, 1977: Vienna, International Atomic Energy Agency, p. 85-117.
- Daniels, J.J. and Scott, J.H., 1982, Automated lithologic interpretation from geophysical well logs in a coal depositional environment, Carbon County, Wyoming, <u>in</u> K.D., Gurgel, ed., Proceedings 5th Rocky Mountain coal symposium: Utah Geological and Mineral Survey Bulletin 118, p. 220-232.
- well logs in a coal depositional envrionment, Illinois
  Basin, Kentucky: U.S. Geological Survey, Bulletin 1509, 44
- Daniels, J.J., Scott, J.H. and Liu, J, 1983, Estimation of coal quality parameters from geophysical well logs, <u>in</u> 24th annual logging symposium transactions, paper KK: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 20 p.
- Davis, D., 1977, Geophysical logging of coal, <u>in</u> D.K. Murray, ed., Geology of Rocky Mountain coal: Colorado Geological Survey, Resource Series 1, p. 115-119.
- Dyck, J.H. and McKenzie, C.T., 1979, Estimating certain analytical properties of lignite in Saskatchewan from gamma-gamma borehole density logs, <u>in</u> 7th formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper Z: Calgary, Canadian Well Logging Society, 16 p.

- Edwards, K.W. and Banks, K.M., 1978, A theoretical approach to the evaluation of in-situ coal: Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy Bulletin, v. 71(792), p. 124-131.
- Fertl, W.H. and DeVries, M.R., 1977, Coal evaluation using geophysical well logs, <u>in</u> 6th formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper F: Calgary, Canadian Well Logging Society, 17 p.
- Fishel, K.W. and Mayer, R., Jr., 1979, Extremely high resolution density coal logging techniques, <u>in</u> G.O. Argall, Jr., eds., Coal exploration 2 (proceedings of 2nd international coal exploration symposium, Denver, 1978): Miller Freeman Publications Inc., p. 490-504.
- Hoffman, G.L., Jordan, G.R. and Wallis, G.R., 1982, Geophysical logging handbook for coal exploration: Edmonton, Alberta, Canada, The Coal Mining Research Centre, 270 p. The best single source for information on the tools, techniques and qualitative interpretation of logs for coal exploration.
- Hoffman, L.J.B., 1984, Determination of pyritic sulphur in coal using induced polarisation, <u>in</u> 25th annual logging symposium transactions, paper III: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 12 p.
- Kayal, J.R., 1981, In situ analysis of coal from single electrode resistance, self-potential and gamma-ray logs: Geophysical Research Bulletin, v. 19(2), p. 117-121.
- formations: Pure and Applied Geophysics, v. 119, p. 349-355.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1979, Electrical and gamma-ray logging in Gondwana and Tertiary coal fields of India: Geoexploration, v. 17, p. 243-258.
- Kayal, J.R. and Christoffel, D.A., 1982, Relationship between electrical and thermal resistivities for differing grades of coal: Geophysics, v. 47(1), p. 127-129. Discussion and Reply in 1982, Geophysics, v. 47(10), p. 1461.
- Kayal, J.R. and Das, L.K., 1981, A method of estimating ash content of coal from combined resistivity and gamma-ray logs: Geoexploration, v. 19, p. 193-200.
- Kowalski, J. and Fertl, W.H., 1977, Application of geophysical well logging to coal mining operations: Energy Sources, v. 3(2), p. 133-147.
- Kowalski, J. and Holter, M.E., 1976, Coal analysis from well logs: Canadian Well Logging Society Journal, v. 9(1), p. 97-113.

- Lavers, B.A. and Smits, L.J.M., 1976, Recent developments in coal petrophysics, <u>in</u> 17th annual logging symposium transactions, paper S; Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 19 p. Later published in 1977, The Log Analyst, v. 18(1), January-February, p. 6-16.
- Mayer, R., Jr. and Fishel, K.W., 1979, Applications of electric logs in Applachian coal exploration, <u>in</u> 6th European logging symposium transactions, paper DD: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 18 p.
- Miller, M.S. and Moore, M., 1980, Geophysical logging and exploration techniques in the Appalachian coal fields: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 55th annual meeting (Dallas) preprint SPE-9466.
- Reeves, D.K., 1979, Some improvements and developments in coal wireline logging techniques, <u>in</u> G.O. Argall, Jr., eds., Coal exploration 2 (proceedings of 2nd international coal exploration symposium, Denver, 1978): Miller Freeman Publications Inc., p. 468-489.
- Rieke, H.H., III, Oliver, D.W. and Fertl, W.H., McCord, J.P., 1980, Successful application of carbon/oxygen logging to coalbed exploration: Dailas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 55th annual meeting (Dallas) preprint SPE-9464, 11 p. Later published in 1983, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 35(2), p. 421-428. Reprinted in 1981, Carbon/Oxygen Log: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 9417.
- Rieke, H.H., Rightmire, C.T. and Fertl, W.H., 1979, Evaluation of gas bearing coal seams: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 54th annual meeting (Las Vegas) preprint SPE-8359. Later published 1981, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 33(1), p. 195-204.
- Suau, J., 1981, Logging methods for coal exploration: Bulletin des Centres de Recherchese Exploration-Production Elf-Aquitain, v. 5(2), p. 621-633.
- Weltz, L.S., 1976, Log evaluation of sub-bituminous coals in Magallenes--Chile, <u>In</u> 17th annual logging symposium transactions, paper K: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 33 p.

### 15. FRACTURE DETECTION AND EVALUATION

- Aguilera, R., 1983, Exploring for naturally fractured reservoirs, in 24th annual logging symposium transactions, paper C: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 28 p. \_, 1981, A computerized well log intperpretation process for the evaluation of naturally fractured reservoirs: Calgary, Petroleum society of CIM 32nd annual technical meeting (Calgary) preprint 81-32-6, 8 p. \_, 1980, Naturally fractured reservoirs: Tulsa, Petroleum Publishing Co., 703 p. In particular chapter 3, Formation evaluation by well log analysis, p. 125-232. See references. \_\_, 1975, Analysis of naturally fractured reservoirs from conventional well logs: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, Rocky Mountain regional meeting preprint SPE-5342. Later published in 1976, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 28(7), p. 764-772. Discussion and reply published in 1976, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 28(10), p. 1183-1184. \_\_\_, 1973, Analysis of naturally fractured reservoirs from sonic and resistivity logs: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, Rocky Mountain regional meeting preprint SPE-4398. Later published in 1974, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 26(11), p. 1233-1238. Aguilera, R. and Van Poolen, H.K., 1979, Porosity and water saturation can be estimated from logs: Oil and Gas Journal, v. 77, January 8, p. 101-108. \_, 1978, How to evaluate naturally fractured reservoirs from various well logs: Oil and Gas Journal, v. 76, December 25, p. 202-208. \_, 1977, Current status on the study of naturally fractured reservoirs: The Log Analyst, v. 18(3), p. 3-23.
- Babcock, E.A., 1978, Measurement of surbsurface fractures from dipmeter logs: AAPG Bulletin, v. 62(7), p. 1111-1126.
- Beck, J., Schultz, A. and Fitzgerald, D., 1977, Reservoir evaluation of fractured Cretaceous carbonates in south Texas, in 18th annual logging symposium transactions, paper M: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 25 p.

- Botter, B.J., 1982, Circumferential acoustic waves in boreholes for the delineation of vertical fractures, <u>in</u> 23rd annual logging symposium, paper S: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 21 p.
- Boyeldieu, C. and Martin, C., 1984, Fracture dectection and evaluation, <u>in</u> 9th international formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper 21: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 9 p.
- Boyeldieu, C. and Winchester, A., 1982, Use of the Dual Laterolog for the evaluation of the fracture porosity in hard carbonate formations: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, Offshore South East Asia 82 conference preprint SPE-10464, 11 p.
- Brevetti, J.C., Greer, G. and Weis, B.R., 1985, Evaluation of fractured carbonates in the Mid-Continent region, <u>in</u> 26th annual logging symposium transactions, paper IIIP: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 19 p.
- Butler, M. Phelan, M.J. and Wright, A.W.R., 1976, Buchan field: Evaluation of a fractured sandstone reservoir, <u>in</u> 4th European formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper A: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, London Chapter, 18 p. Later published in 1977, The Log Analyst, v. 18(2), March-April, p. 23-31.
- Cannon, D.E., 1979, Log evaluation of a fractured reservoir--Monterey Shale, <u>in</u> 20th annual logging symposium transactions, paper Q: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 13 p.
- Cheung, P.S.Y., 1984, Fracture detection using the sonic tool, <u>in</u> 9th international formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper 42: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 8 p.
- Delhomme, J.P., Panci, G., Leslie, D., Cigni, M. and Spila, M., 1981, An integrated approach to fracture detection from multipad sensors, <u>in</u> 7th European logging symposium transactions, paper 26: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 17 p.
- Entyre, L., 1981, Fracture detection identification in the Panoma Field, Council Grove Formation: The Log Analyst, v. 22(6), November-December, p. 3-6.
- Fertl, W.H., 1983, Gamma ray spectral logging, part IV--Application in fractured shales: World Oil, v. 196(7), June, p. 189-204.

- \_\_\_\_\_, 1980, Evaluation of fractured reservoirs using geophysical well logs, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the SPE/DOE unconventional gas recovery symposium, SPE/DOE-8938: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 131-136.
- Flower, J.G., 1981, Use of sonic-shear-wave/resistivity overlay as a quick-look method for identifying potential pay zones in the Ohio (Devonian) Shale: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, eastern regional meeting preprint SPE-10366. Later published in 1983, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 35(3), p. 638-642.
- Heflin, J.D., 1979, Fracture detection in West Coast reservoirs using well logs: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, California Regional meeting preprint SPE-7976, 16 p.
- Heflin, J.D. and Frost, E., Jr., 1981, Some novel approaches in the use of wireline logs for fracture detection, <u>In</u> 7th Europan logging symposium transactions, paper 22: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 42 p. Later published 1983, <u>In</u> C.M. Isaacs, R.E. Garrison, eds., Petroleum generation and occurrence in the Miocene Monterey Formation, California: Pacific Section of the Society of Economic Paleontologists and Mineralogists, p. 131-149.
- Heflin, J.D., Neill, B.E. and DeVries, M.R., 1976, Log evaluation in the California Miocene: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 51st annual meeting (New Orleans) preprint SPE-6160, 17 p. Reprinted in 1981, Spectralog: Houston, Dresser Industries, publication 3334.
- Mathieu, F. and Tokosz, M.N., 1984, Determination of fracture permeability using acoustic logs, <u>In</u> 9th international formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper 47: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 39 p.
- McCoy, R.L., Kumar, R.M. and Pease, R.W., 1980, Identifying fractures with conventional well logs: World Oil, v. 191(7), December, p. 91-98.
- Morris, R.L., Grine, D.R. and Arkfeld, T.E., 1964, Using compressional and shear acoustic amplitudes for the location of fractures: Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 16(6), p. 623-632.
- Paillet, F.L., 1981, A comparison of fracture characterization techniques applied to near-vertical fractures in a limestone reservoir, <u>in</u> 22nd annual logging symposium transactions, paper XX: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 29 p.

- Paillet, F.L. and Hess, A.E., 1985, Effects of lithology on televiewer log quality and fracture interpretation, <u>in</u> 26th annual logging symposium transactions, paper JJJ: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 31 p.
- Schafer, J.N., 1979, A practical method of well evaluation and acreage development for the naturally fractured Austin Chalk Formation, <u>In</u> 20th annual logging symposium transactions, paper U: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 27 p. Later published in 1980, The Log Analyst, v. 21(1), January-February, p. 10-23.
- Senecal, J.E., and Mulhern, M.E., 1985, Monterey Formation analysis--State-of-the-art interpretation of lithology, fractures and fluid identification in fine-grained mineralogically variable rocks, <u>in</u> 26th annual logging symposium transactions, paper KKK: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 16 p.
- Sibbit, A. and Faivre, O., 1985, The Dual Laterolog response in fractured rocks, <u>in</u> 26th annual logging symposium transactions, paper T: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 34 p.
- Suau, J. and Gartner, J., 1980, Fracture detection from well logs: The Log Analyst, v. 21(2), March-April, p. 3-13.
- Taylor, T.J., 1983, Interpretation and application of borehole televiewer surveys, <u>in</u> 24th annual logging symposium transactions, paper QQ: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 19 p.
- Yamaguchi, S. and Hirakawa, S., 1983, A method for well log interpretation of a fractured oil reservoir: Butsuri-Tanko [Geophysical Exploration], v. 36(1), p. 16-22 p.
- Zemanek, J., Caldwell, R.L., Glenn, E.E., Jr., Holcaomb, S.W., Norton, L.J. And Straus, A.J.D., 1968, The Borehole Televiewer--A new logging concept for fracture location and other types of borehole inspection: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 43rd Annual Meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-2402. Later published in 1969, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 21(6), p. 762-774.

### 16. GAS HYDRATES

- Collett, T.S. and Ehlig-Economides, C.A., 1983, Detection and evaluation of the in-situ natural gas hydrates in the north slope region, <u>In Proceedings of the 53rd annual California regional meeting</u>, SPE-11673: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers p. 97-106.
- Collett, T.S. and Godbole, S.P. and Ehlig-Economides, C., 1984, Quantification of in-situ gas hydrates with well logs, <u>In</u> 35th annual meeting transactions, v. 2: Calgary, Petroleum Society of CIM and Canadian Association of Drilling Engineers, p. 571-582.
- Desai, K.P. and Morre, E.J., 1967, Well log interpretation in permafrost, <u>in</u> 8th annual logging symposium transactions, paper N: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 27 p.
- Goodman, M.A. and Giussani, A.P. and Alger, R.P., 1982,
  Detection and evaluation methods for in-situ gas hydrates,
  <u>in</u> Proceedings of the SPE/DOE unonventional gas recovery
  symposium, SPE/DOE-10831: Dallas, Society of Petroleum
  Engineers, p. 355-371.
- Hoyer, W.A., Simmons, S.O., Spann, M.M. and Watson, A.T., 1975, Evaluation of permafrost with logs, <u>in</u> 16th annual logging symposium transactions, paper AA: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 15 p.
- Katz, D.L., 1970, Depths to which frozen gas fields (gas hydrates) may be expected: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 45th annual meeting (Houston) preprint SPE-3061. Later published in 1971, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 23(4), p. 419-423.
- Pearson, C.F., Halleck, P.M., McGuire, P.L., Hermes, R. and Mathews, M., 1983, Natural gas hydrate deposits—A review of in-situ properties: Journal of Physical Chemistry, v. 87, p. 4180-4185.
- Pollard, D.E. and Nash, R.G., 1971, Observations on permafrost logging in the Canadian Arctic: Canadian Well Logging Society Journal, v. 4(1), p. 37-84.
- Stewart, J.M. and Weaver, J.S., 1983, Permafrost and hydrates under the Beaufort Sea, <u>In</u> 24th annual logging symposium transactions, paper K: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 18 p.

Walker, J.H.D. and Stuart, A.J., 1976, Permafrost investigations by crystal cable surveys, McKenzie Delta, N.W.T., <u>in</u> 17th annual logging convention transactions, paper J: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 10 p.

## 17. EVAPORITES

- Alger, R.P. and Crain, E.R., 1966, Defining evaporite deposits with electrical well logs, <u>in</u> J.L. Rau, eds., Second symposium on salt, volume 2: Cleveland, Northern Ohio Geological Society, p. 116-130.
- Crain, E.R. and Anderson, W.B., 1966, Quantitative log evaluation of the Prairie Evaporite Formation in Saskatchewan: Canadian Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 5(3), p. 145-152.
- Crues, J.V., Jr., 1977, Lithology crossplots: Applications in an evaporite basin--The Maverick basin of southwest Texas, <u>in</u> 18th annual logging symposium transactions, paper L: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 23 p.
- Daniels, J.J., Scott, J.H. and Hite, R.J., 1979, Analysis of borehole geophysical data in an evaporite sequence at Salt Valley, Utah, <u>in</u> 20th annual logging symposium transactions, paper M: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 19 p.
- Edwards, J.M., Ottinger, N.H. and Haskell, R.E., 1967, Nuclear log evaluation of potash deposit, <u>in</u> 8th annual logging symposium transactions, paper L: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 12 p.
- Goldsmith, L.H., 1966, Some fundamentals of potash geology as a guide to extoration, <u>In</u> 7th annual logging symposium transactions, paper 0: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 15 p.
- Haile, P.M. and Blunden, H.A., 1984, Zechstein magnesium rich evaporite deposits of northern Netherlands and their volumetric analysis by GLOBAL, <u>in</u> 9th international formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper 37: Paris, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Paris Chapter (SAID), 9 p.
- Nurmi, R.D., 1978, Use of well logs in evaporite sequences, <u>in</u> W.E. Dean and B.C. Schreiber, eds., Marine evaporites: Tulsa, Society of Economic Paleontologists and Mineralogists, Short Course Notes No. 4, p. 144-176.
- Ramondetta, P.J. and Merritt, R.M., 1982, Use of geophysical well logs for the determination of mud and anyhdrite content in bedded salt, <u>in</u> Geology and Geohydrology of the Palo Duro Basin, Texas Panhandle: Texas Bureau of Economic Geology, Circular 82-7, p. 105-108.

Ruppel S.C. and Ramondetta, P.J., 1982, Determination of salt purity using gamma-ray logs: San Andres Formation, Palo Duro Basin, <u>in</u> Geology and Geohydrology of the Palo Duro Basin, Texas Panhandie: Texas Bureau of Economic Geology, Circular 82-7, p. 183-200.

#### 18. BOREHOLE GRAVIMETER

- Beyer, L.A., 1983, Borehole gravity surveys: Theory, mechanics and nature of measurements: U.S. Geological Survey, Open-File Report 83-0079, 91 p.
- Black, A.J. and Herring, A.T., 1983 Offset of borehole gravity densities due to geologic structures: Calgary, Canadian Society of Exploration Geophysicists, Annual meeting preprint, 33 p. Available from Edcon, Inc., Denver, Colorado.
- Bradley, J.W., 1975, Application of the borehole gravimeter to the evaluation and exploration of oil and gas reserves: Tulsa, Society of Exploration Geophysicists, 45th annual meeting (Denver) preprint, 15 p.
- Brown , A.R. and Lautzenhiser, T.V., 1982, The effect of dipping beds on a borehole gravimeter survey: Geophysics, v. 47(1), p. 25-30.
- Caton, P.W., 1981, improved methods for reducing borehole-gravity data--Applications and analyses of reduced gravity plots, <u>in</u> 22nd annual logging symposium transactions, paper RR: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 41 p.
- Edcon, Inc., no date, Borehole gravity density logging: Denver, Edcon, Inc., 30 p.
- Gournay, L.S. and Lyle, W.D., 1984, Determination of hydrocarbon saturation and porosity using a combination borehole gravimeter and deep investigating electric log, <u>In</u> 25th annual logging symposium transactions, paper WW: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 14 p.
- Gournay, L.S. and Maute, R.E., 1982, Detection of bypassed gas using borehole gravimeter and pulsed neutron capture logs: The Log Analyst, v. 23(3), May-June, p. 27-32.
- Hearst, J.R., 1977, Estimation of dip and lateral extent of beds with borehole gravimetry: Geophysics, v. 42, p. 990-994.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1977, On the range of investigration of a borehole gravimeter, <u>in</u> 18th annual logging symposium transactions, paper E: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 11 p.
- Hearst, J.R. and Carlson, R.C., 1982, Measurement and analysis of gravity in boreholes, <u>in</u> A.A. Fitch, ed., Developments in geophysical exploration methods 3: London, Applied Science Publishers, p. 269-303.

- Hearst, J.R. and McKague, H.L., 1976, Structure elucidation with borehole gravimetry: Geophysics, v. 41(3), p. 491-505.
- Jageler, A.H. 1975, Improved hyrocarbon reservoir evaluation through use of borehole gravimeter data: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 50th annual meeting (Dallas) preprint SPE-5511, 20 p. Later published in 1976, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 28(6), p. 709-718.
- LaFehr, T.R., 1983, Rock density from borehole gravity surveys: Geophysics, v. 48(3), p. 341-356.
- Maute, R.E. and Gournay, L.S., 1985, Determination of residual oil saturation with the borehole gavity meter, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the 4th Middle East oil technology conference, SPE-13703: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 185-190.
- McCulloh, T.H., Kandle, J.R. and Schoellhamer, 1968, Application of gravity measurements in wells to problems of reservoir evaluation, <u>in</u> 9th annual logging symposium transactions, paper 0: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 28 p.
- Overton, A., 1975, Borehole gravimetry, <u>in</u> A.V. Dyck, ed., Borehole geophysics applied to metallic mineral prospecting--A review: Geological Survey of Canada, Paper 75-31, p. 31-34.
- Rasmussen, N.F., 1975, The successful use of the borehole gravity meter in northern Michigan: The Log Analyst, v. 16(5), September-October, p. 3-10.
- Robbins, S.L., 1980, Bibliography with abridged abstracts of subsurface gravimetry (especially borehole) and corresponding in-situ rock density determinations: U.S. Geological Survey, Open-File Report, 80-710, 47 p.
- Schmoker, J.W., 1977, Density variations in a quartz diorite determined from borehole gravity measurements, San Benito County, California: The Log Analyst, v. 18(2), March-April, p. 32-38.

### 19. MINERAL EVALUATION INCLUDING URANIUM

- Aylmer, J.A., Charbucinski, J., Eisler, P.L. and Youl, S.F., 1984, Quantitative borehole logging of manganese ore by prompt neutron-gamma and neutron activation methods, <u>in</u> 25th annual logging symposium transactions, paper D: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 20 p.
- Baicker, J.A., Stone, J.M., Lister, D.E., Schneider, G., Senftle, F. and Tanner, A., 1982, In-situ ore grade determination and other applications of high-resolution gamma ray spectroscopy in mineral and oil logging: Society of Mining Engineers of AIME, Fall meeting (Honolulu) preprint SME-AIME 82-365, 9 p.
- Baltosser, R.W. and Lawrence, H.W., 1970, Application of well logging techniques in metallic mineral mining: Geophysics, v. 35(1), p. 143-152.
- Chapman, B.H., and Thompson, D.T., 1984, Applications of geophysical logging within skarn-type deposits: The Log Analyst, v. 25(2), March-April, p. 13-24.
- Chrusciel, E., Niewodniczanski, J., Palka, K.W. and Roman, S., 1977, Determination of sulphur content in boreholes by neutron capture, <u>in</u> Nuclear techniques and mineral resources 1977 (proceedings of the international symposium on nuclear techniques in exploration, extraction and processing of mineral resource, 1977): Vienna, International Atomic Energy Agency, p. 301-311.
- Conaway, J.G., 1983, Digital filtering of geophysical logs <u>in</u> A.A. Fitch, ed., Developments in geophyscial methods--5: London, Applied Science Publishers, p. 65-105.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1980, Uranium concentrations and the system response function in gamma ray logging: Geological Survey of Canada, Paper 80-1A, p. 77-87.
- Conaway, J.G., Killeen, P.G. and Bristow, Q., 1981, Variable formation parameters and nonlinear errors in quantitative gamma ray log interpretation: Tulsa, Society of Exploration Geophysicists, 50th annual meeting technical papers, paper M-11, v. 5, p. 2523-2534.
- Conaway, J.G., Bristow, Q., Killeen, P.G., 1980, Optimization of gamma-ray logging techniques for uranium: Geophysics, v. 45(2), p. 292-311.
- Cossy, S.P.J. and Frank, H.J., 1983, Uranium mineralization and use of resistance log character in deltaic point bars: Franklin Mines, Karnes County, Texas: AAPG Bulletin, v. 67(1), p. 131-151.

- Dodd, P.H., 1966, Quantitative logging and interpretation systems to evaluate uranium deposits, <u>In</u> 7th annual logging symposium transactions, paper P: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 21 p. Reprinted in 1978, Gamma Ray, Neutron and Density Logging: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, Reprint volume, paper DD, 21 p.
- Dodd, P.H. and Eschliman, D.H., 1972, Borehole logging techniques for uranium exploration and evaluation, <u>in</u> S.H.U. Bowie, M. Davis and D.Ostle, eds., Uranium prospecting handbook (proceedings of a NATO-sponsored advanced study institute, 1971): London, Institution of Mining and Metallurgy, p. 244-276.
- Dyck, A.V., 1975, Electrical borehole methods applied to mineral prospecting, in A.V. Dyck, ed., Borehole geophysics applied to metallic mineral prospecting—A review: Geological Survey of Canada Paper, 75-31, p. 13-30.
- Givens, W.W., Mills, W.R., Dennis, C.L. and Caldwell, R.L., 1976, Uranium assay logging using a pulsed 14-MEV neutron source and detection of delayed fission neutrons: Geophysics, v. 41(3), p. 468-490.
- Goldman, L.H. and Marr, H.E., 1979, Applications of high resolution gamma ray spectroscopy to well logging, <u>in</u> 20th annual logging symposium transactions, paper GG: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 8 p.
- Hale, L.A., 1967, Phosphate exploration using gamma-radiation logs, Dry Valley, Idaho, <u>in</u> Anatomay of the western phosphate field--Intermountain Association of Geologists 15th annual field conference: Salt Lake City, Utah, Intermountain Association of Geologists, p. 147-159.
- Hallenburg, J.K., 1984, Geophysical logging for mineral and engineering applications: Tulsa, Pennwell Books, 254 p.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1978, Use of the spontaneous potential curve in a mineral mapping technique, <u>in</u> 19th annual logging symposium transactions, paper U: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 12 p.
- 1973, Interpretation of gamma-ray logs, <u>in</u> 14th annual logging symposium transactions, paper G: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 28 p. Reprinted in the 1973, The Log Analyst, v. 14(6), November-December, p. 3. Quantitative use of the gamma ray curve for uranium assay.
- Hood, P.J. and Dyck, A.V., 1975, Magnetic drillhole measurements in mineral exploration, <u>in</u> A.V. Dyck, ed., Borehole geophysics applied to metallic mineral prospecting-A review: Geological Survey of Canada Paper, 75-31, p. 35-38.

IRT Corporation, 1976, Future research in borehole assaying technology, volume 1: Technology assessment of borehole logging techniques, 325 p. Volume 2: Bibliography of borehole assaying techniques, 1965-75: U.S. Bureau of Mines, Open-File Report 119(1,2)-76 (Contract J0255018, Final Report, March 18, 1976).

. . .

- Jessop, A.M. and Judge, A.S., 1975, Temperature measurement in boreholes for the mining industry, <u>in</u> A.V. Dyck, ed., Borehole geophysics applied to metallic mineral prospecting—A review: Geological Survey of Canada Paper, 75-31, p. 55-66.
- Killeen, P.G., 1975, Nuclear techniques for borehole logging in mineral exploration, <u>in</u> A.V. Dyck, ed., Borehole geophysics applied to metallic mineral prospecting—A review:

  Geological Survey of Canada, Paper 75-31, p. 39-52.
- Lovborg, L., 1972, Assessment of uranium by gamma-ray spectrometry, <u>In</u> S.H.U. Bowie, M. Davis and D.Ostle, eds., Uranium prospecting handbook (proceedings of a NATO advanced study institute, 1971): London, The Institution of Mining and Metallurgy, p. 157-173.
- Lovborg, L., Nyegaard, P., Christiansen, E.M., Nielsen, B.L., 1980, Borehole logging for uranium by gamma-ray spectrometry: Geophysics, v. 45(6), p. 1077-1090.
- Mwenifumbo, C.J., 1985, Application of borehole geophysics in exploration of gold, <u>in</u> 26th annual logging symposium transactions, paper DD: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 24 p.
- Overton, A., 1975, Borehole seismic methods, <u>in</u> A.V. Dyck, ed., Borehole geophysics applied to metallic mineral prospecting—A review: Geological Survey of Canada Paper, 75-31, p. 3-12.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1975, Borehole gravimetry, <u>in</u> A.V. Dyck, ed., Borehole geophysics applied to metallic mineral prospecting--A review: Geological Survey of Canada Paper, 75-31, p. 31-34.
- Scott, J.H., 1974, Well-logging techniques for mineral deposit evaluation—A review: U.S. Bureau of Mines, Information Circular 8627, 45 P.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1974, Acoustic logging for mining applications, <u>in</u> 15th annual logging symposium transactions, paper P: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 10 p.
- Scott, J.H., Daniels, J.J., Reynolds, R.L. and Seeley, R.L., 1983, Magnetic-susceptibility logging in sedimentary uranium environments: The Log Analyst, v. 24(2), March-April, p. 16-21.

- Scott, J.H., Daniels, J.J., Habrouck, W.P., Guu, J.Y., 1975, Hole-to-hole geophysical measurement for mineral exploration, <u>in</u> 16th annual logging symposium transactions, paper FF: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 14 p.
- Snyder, D.D., Merkel, R.H. and Williams, T.T., 1977, Complex formation resistivity—The forgotten half of the resistivity log, <u>in</u> 18th annual logging symposium transactions, paper Z: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 39 p.
- Threadgold, P., 1970, Applications of well-logging techniques to mining exploration boreholes, <u>in</u> Mining and petroleum geology (proceedings of 9th Commonwealth mining and metallurgical congress, 1969): London, The Institution of Mining and Metallurgy, p. 731-747.
- Tixier, M.P. and Alger, R.P., 1967, Log evaluation of non-metallic mineral deposits, <u>in</u> 8th annual logging symposium transactions, paper R: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 22 p. Later published in 1970, Geophysics, v. 35(1) p. 124-142. Reprinted in 1971, Well Logging: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, Reprint Series 1, p. 368-390.
- Wylie, A.W. and Eisler, P.L., 1978, Determining the grade, bulk density and porosity of iron ores by the methods of nuclear geophysics: Atomic Energy in Australia, v. 21, p. 2-13.
- Veneziani, I.I., Pirson, S.J., Colombo, U. and Broome, M.B., 1972, The Redox log, <u>in</u> 13th annual logging symposium transactions, paper D: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 18 p.

### 20. GROUND WATER APPLICATIONS

1 1 1

- Dyck, J.H., Keys, W.S. and Meneley, W.A., 1972, Application of geophysical logging to groundwater studies in southeastern Saskatchewan: Canadian Journal of Earth Sciences, v. 9, p. 78-94.
- Keys., W.S., 1971, Application of borehole geophysics to water-resources investigations: U.S. Geological Survey, Techniques of Water-Resources Investigations, book 2, chapter E1, 126 p. Revised edition currently in preparation.
- Keys, W.S. and MacCary, L.M., 1973, Location and characteristics of the interface between brine and fresh water from geophysical logs of boreholes in the upper Brazos River basin, Texas: U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper, 809-B, 23 p.
- Kwader, T., 1982, Interpretation of geophysical logs in shallow carbonate environments and their applications to ground water resource investigations: T. Kwader Inc., 201 p.
- MacCary, L.M., 1980, Use of geophysical logs to estimate water-quality trends in carbonate aquifers: U.S. Geological Survey, Water-Resources Investigations 80-57, 23 p.
- U.S. Geological Survey, Water-Resources Investigations 78-88, 30 p.
- McConnell, C.L., 1985, Time dependence of the quivalent water resistivity in fresh water wells: The Log Analyst, v. 26(3), May-June, p. 12-17.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1983, Spontaneous Potential corrections for ground-water salinity calculations; Carter County, Oklahoma, U.S.A.:
  Journal of Hydrology, v. 65, p. 363-372.
- Nielsen, D.M. and Curl, M., eds., 1984, Proceedings of NWWA/EPA conference on surface and borehole geophysical methods in ground water investigations: Worthington, Ohio, National Water Well Association, variously paginated.
- Pirson, S.J., 1983, Geologic well log analysis, 3rd ed.:
  Houston, Gulf Publishing Company, 475 p. See chapters 8-10
  on hydrodynamics, p. 216-333.
- Vonhof, J.A., 1966, Water quality determination from spontaneous-potential electric log curves: Journal of Hydrology, v. 4, p. 341-347.

#### 21. IGNEOUS AND METAMORPHIC ROCKS

1 1 7

- Anderson, R.N. and O'Malley, H., 1985, Frequency response and attenuation changes across highly altered fracture zones crosscutting a fast formation: the oceanic crust of the Mid-Atlantic Ridge in 26th annual well logging symposium transactions, paper LLL: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 12 p.
- Blackwood, D.J. and Peveraro, R.C.A., 1983, Determination of rock properties in a metamorphic/igneous formation by integrated formation evaluation, <u>in</u> 24th annual logging symposium transactions, paper AAA: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 25 p.
- Chapman, B.H., and Thompson, D.T., 1984, Applications of geophysical logging within skarn-type deposits: The Log Analyst, v. 25(2), March-April, p. 13-24.
- Daniels, J.J., Scott, J.H. and Olhoeft, G., 1981, Interpreting Precambrian metamorphic geology, <u>in</u> 22nd annual logging symposium transactions, paper T: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 16 p.
- Douglas, A.C. and Millett, M.R., 1978, Total intensity magnetometer logging as a stratigraphic tool in Tertiary volcanic rock: Lawrence Livermore Laboratory Report, UCRL-52617, 11 p.
- Itoh, T., Kato, S. and Miyairi, M., 1982, A quick method of log interpretation for very low resistivity volcanic tuff by the use of CEC data, <u>in</u> 23rd annual logging symposium transactions, paper NN: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 26 p.
- Keys, W.S., 1979, Borehole geophysics in igneous and metamorphic rocks, in 20th annual logging symposium transactions, paper 00: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 26 p. Later reprinted 1979, The Log Analyst, v. 20(4), July-August, P. 14-28.
- Khatchikian, A., 1982, Log analysis of oil-bearing igneous rocks, <u>In</u> 23rd annual logging symposium transactions, paper AA, 34 p. Later published in condensed form 1983, World Oil v. 197(7), December, p. 79-98.
- Khatchikan, A. and Lesta, P, 1973, Log evaluation of tuffites and tuffaceous sandstones in southern Argentina, <u>in</u> 14th annual logging symposium transactions, paper K: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 23 p.

- McCann, D.M., Barton, K.J. and Hearn, K., 1983, Geophysical well logging in a crystalline rock mass, <u>in</u> 8th formation evaluation symposium transactions, paper G: London, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts London Chapter, 25 p.
- Ritch, H.J., 1975, An open hole logging evaluation in metamorphic rocks, <u>in</u> 16th annual logging symposium transactions, paper V: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 11 p.

\$ 8 Q

- Sanyal, S.K., Juprasert, S. and Jusbasche, M., 1979, An evaluation of a rhyolite-basalt-volcanic ash sequence from well logs, <u>In</u> 20th annual logging symposium transactions, paper TT: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 14 p. Later reprinted in 1980, The Log Analyst, v. 20(1), January-February, p. 3-9.
- Schmoker, J.W., 1977, Density variations in a quartz diorite determined from borehole gravity measurements, San Benito County, California: The Log Analyst, v. 18(2), March-April, p. 32-38.
- Soonawala, N.M., 1983, Geophysical logging in granites: Geoexploration, v. 21(3), p. 221-230.
- Stefansson, V., Gudmundsson, A. and Emmerman, R., 1982, Gamma ray logging in Icelandic rocks: The Log Analyst, v. 23(6), November-December, p. 11-16.
- West, F.G. and Laughlin, A.W., 1976, Spectral gamma logging in crystalline basement rocks: Geology, v. 6, p. 617-618.

#### 22. GEOTHERMAL AND GEOPRESSURE

- Baker, L.E., Campbell, A.B., Hughen, R.L., 1975, Well-logging technology and geothermal applications—A survey and assessment with recommendations: Sandia Laboratory, Report SAND 75-0275, 75 P.
- Benoit, W.R., Sethi, D.K., Ferti, W.H. and Mathews, M., 1980, Geothermal well log analysis at Desert Peak, Nevada, <u>In</u> 21st annual logging symposium transactions, paper AA: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 41 p.
- Dunlap, M.F. and Dorfman, M.H., 1981, Problems and partial solutions of using the SP log to predict water salinity in deep hot wells, <u>in</u> D.G. Bebout and A.L. Bachman, eds., Proceedings of the fifth conference on geopressured-geothermal energy: Baton Rouge, Louisiana State University, p. 189-192. Also published in 1981, Geothermal Resource Council Transactions, v. 5, October, p. 283-286.
- Ehring, T.W., Lusk, L.A., Grubb, J.M., Johnson, R.B., DeBries, M.R. and Ferti, W.H., 1978, Formation evaluation concepts for geothermal reservoirs, <u>in</u> 19th annual logging symposium transactions, paper FF: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 14 p.
- Ershaghi, I. and Abdassah, D., 1983, Interpretation of some wireline logs in geothermal fields of the Imperial Valley, California, <u>In</u> Proceedings California regional meeting (Ventura) SPE-11745: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, p. 727-736.
- Ershaghi, I., Dougherty, E.L., Ucok, H., Ghassemi, F., 1981,
  Problems in estimation of salinity profile in liquid
  dominated geothermal systems, <u>in</u> I. Ershaghi, E.E.
  Dougherty, L.L. Handy, eds., Formation evaluation in liquid
  dominated geothermal reservoirs: U.S. Department of Energy,
  Report DOE/ET/28384-T1, p. 36-38.
- Ershaghi, I., Dougherty, E.L., Herzberg, D. and Ucok, H., 1981, Permeability determination in liquid dominated geothermal reservoirs using the Dual Induction Laterolog, <u>In</u> I. Ershaghi, E.E. Dougherty, L.L. Handy, eds., Formation evaluation in liquid dominated geothermal reservoirs: U.S. Department of Energy, Report DOE/ET/28384-T1, p. 41-59.
- Ershaghi, I., Ghaemian, S. and Abdassah, D., 1981, Lithology and hydrothermal alteration determination from well logs for the Cerro Prieto wells, Mexico: Los Alamos National Laboratory, Report LA-9075-MS, 28 p.

- Ershaghi, I., Ghaemian, U. and Mathews, M., 1980, Detection of hydrothermal alteration in a sedimentary type geothermal system using well logs: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 55th annual meeting (Dallas) preprint SPE-9499, 11 p.
- Ershaghi, I., Phillips, L.B., Dougherty, E.L. and Handy, L.L., 1979, Application of oil-field well log interpretation techniques to the Cerro Prieto Geothermal Field: Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory, Report LA-8130-MS, 142 p.
- Ferti, W.H., 1980, Geophysical well logs applied to geothermal resource evaluation, <u>in</u> P.F. Burollet and V. Ziegler, eds., Energy resources, colloqium C2, 26th international geological congress: Paris, Editions Technip, p. 461-468.
- Glenn, W.E., Ross, H.P. and Atwood, J.W., 1980, Review of well logging in the Basin and Range known geothermal resource areas: Dallas, Society of Petroleum Engineers, 55th annual meeting (Dallas) preprint SPE-9496. Later published in 1982, Journal of Petroleum Technology, v. 34(5), p. 1104-1118.
- Gregory, A.R. and Backus, M.M., 1980, Geopressured formation parameters, geothermal well, Brazoria County, Texas, <u>in</u> M.H. Dorfman and W.L. Fisher, eds., Proceedings fourth U.S. Gulf Coast geopressured-geothermal energy conference, volume 1: Austin, University of Texas, Center for Energy Studies, p. 235-311.
- Hirakawa, S. and Yamaguchi, S., 1982, Geothermal well logging and its interpretation, in P. Kruger, H.J. Ramey, et.al., eds., Proceedings of the 7th DOE geothermal reservoir engineering workshop, Stanford, CA., 1981: U.S. Department of Energy, Report CONF-811201, p. 115-119.
- Keys, W.S., 1982, Borehole geophysics in geothermal exploration, <u>In</u> A.A. Fitch, ed., Developments in geophysical exploration methods 3: London, Applied Science Publishers, p. 239-268.
- Keys, W.S. and Sullivan, J.K., 1979, Role of geophysics in defining physical characteristics of the Raft River geothermal reservoir, Idaho: Geophysics, v. 44(6), p. 1116-1141.
- Littleton, R.T. and Burnett, E.E., 1976, The salinity profile of the East Mesa Field as determined from dual induction resistivity and SP logs, <u>in</u> Proceedings of the 1st EPA workshop on sampling geothermal effluents: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Report EPA-600/9-76-011, p. 114-125.

- Lyons, D.J. and van de Kamp, P.C., 1980, Subsurface geological and geophysical study of the Cerro Prieto Geothermal Field, Baja California, Mexico: Lawrence Berkeley Laboratory, Report LBL-10540, 95 p.
- Rigby, F.A., 1981, Applications of geothermal well log data for evaluation of reservoir potential: Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory, Report LA-8778-MS, 69 p.
- Rigby, F.A. and Zebal, G.P., 1981, Case history on geothermal well log interpretation Surprise Valley, California: Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory, Report LA-8598-MS, 58 p.
- Sanyal, S.K., Che, M., Dunlap, R.E. and Twichell, M.K., 1982,
  Theoretical nuclear log responses of the components of the
  Geysers geothermal reservoir, California: Geothermal
  Resources Council Transactions, v. 6, p. 165-168.
- \_\_\_\_\_, 1982, Qualitative patterns on geophysical well logs from the Geysers, California: Geothermal Resources Council Transactions, v. 6, p. 313-316.
- Sanyal, S.K., Wells, L.E., Bickham, R.E., 1980, Geothermal well log interpretation state of the art--Final report: Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory, Report LA-8211-MS, 330 p.
- Sanyal, S.K. and Jusbasche, J.M., 1979, Calculation of geothermal water salinity from well logs--A statistical approach: Geothermal Resources Council Transactions, v. 3, September, p. 613-616.
- Seamount, D.T., Jr. and Elders, W.A., 1982, Use of wireline logs at Cerro Prieto in the identification of the distribution of hydrothermally altered zones and dike locations and their correlation with reservoir temperatures, <u>In</u> Proceedings of the third symposium on the Cerro Prieto Geothermal Field, Baja Calfifornia, Mexico, 1981: Lawrence Berkeley Laboratory, Report LBL-11967 (DOE Report CONF-810399), p. 123-133.
- Silva, P. and Bassiouni, Z, 1981, Accurate determination of geopressured acquifer salinity from the SP log, <u>in</u> D.G. Bebout and A.L. Bachman, eds., Proceedings of the fifth conference on geopressured-geothermal energy: Baton Rouge, Louisiana State University, p. 193-196. Also published in 1981, Geothermal Resources Council Transactions, v. 5, p. 737-740.
- Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, 1982, Geothermal handbook: Houston, Society of Professional Well Log Analysts, variously paginated. Contains discussion of interpretation techniques, reprints of significant papers and a comprehensive bibliography.

Stefansson, V. and Steingrimsson, B., 1980, Geothermal logging I--An introduction to techniques and interpretation:
Reykjavik, National Research Council of Iceland, Scientific and Technical Information Service, Report OS80017/JHD09, 117 p.